Cambridge City Council e
CAMBRIDGE

Civic Affairs CITY COUNCIL

Date: Wednesday, 5 February 2025
Time: 5.30 pm

Venue: Council Chamber, The Guildhall, Market Square, Cambridge, CB2
3QJ [access the building via Peashill entrance]

Contact: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk, tel:01223 457000

Agenda

1 Apologies

2 Declarations of Interest

3 Minutes (Pages 3 - 10)

4 Public Questions

5 Constitutional Changes to Cambridge City Council in (Pages 11 -
regards of Planning 128)

6 Draft Pay Policy Statement 2025/26 (Pages 129 -

142)




Civic Affairs Members: McPherson (Chair), Gawthrope Wood (Vice-
Chair), Bennett, Robertson, Sheil and Young

Alternates: Bick, Clough and Holloway

Information for the public
The public may record (e.g. film, audio, tweet, blog) meetings which are open
to the public.

For full information about committee meetings, committee reports, councillors
and the democratic process:

e Website: http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk

e Email: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk

e Phone: 01223 457000

This Meeting will be live streamed to the Council’'s YouTube page. You can
watch proceedings on the livestream or attend the meeting in person.

Those wishing to address the meeting will be able to do so virtually via
Microsoft Teams, or by attending to speak in person. You must contact
Democratic Services democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk by 12 noon two
working days before the meeting.

The full text of any public question must be submitted in writing by
noon two working days before the date of the meeting or it will not be
accepted. All questions submitted by the deadline will be published on
the meeting webpage before the meeting is held.

Further information on public speaking will be supplied once registration and
the written question / statement has been received.



http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3

Civic Affairs Civ/1l Thursday, 5 December 2024
CIVIC AFFAIRS 5 December 2024
5.30 -6.41 pm

Present: Councillors McPherson (Chair), Gawthrope Wood (Vice-Chair),
Robertson and Young

Also present (virtually) Councillor: Bennett

Officers:

Head of Shared Internal Audit Service: Jonathan Tully
Isabel Brittain: Deputy Chief Finance Officer
Committee Manager: Claire Tunnicliffe

Others Present:
Ernst & Young Audit Partner: Mark Hodgson

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL

24/35/Civ  Apologies
Apologies were received from Councillor Sheil.

24/36/Civ Declarations of Interest
No declarations were declared.

24/37/Civ  Minutes

The minutes from the meeting held on 11 September 2024 were agreed as a
true and accurate record.

24/38/Civ  Public Questions
No public questions were received.

24/39/Civ Review of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling
Stations

The Committee received a report on the review of polling districts, polling
places and polling stations which must be conducted every five years. The
next compulsory review had to be completed by 31 January 2025.

The Electoral Services Manager said the following in response to Member's
guestions.

Page 3



Civic Affairs Civ/2 Thursday, 5 December 2024

I.  Would be happy to investigate all suggestions for potential polling
stations to consider their suitability.

ii. Information for Tellers was provided by Officers to the Election Agents
which was expected to be shared with their relevant personnel.

lii. Laminated crib sheets were made available to Polling Station Staff to
hand out to Tellers on the day of the elections. It was expected that
Tellers would then pass on to the next incoming Teller when there was a
change throughout the day.

iv. Noted the comment it was important for Election Agents to highlight with
their Tellers any change in the rules and regulations.

The Committee unanimously resolved to:

I.  Approve the amendments to three polling districts in Cambridge, as laid
out in the Proposed Changes, at Appendix A of the Officer’s report.

ii. Agree that the polling place for each polling district is the polling district
boundary. (See definition of terms at 4.1).

24/40/Civ Annual Governance Statement and Local Code of
Governance

The committee received a report from the Head of Shared Internal Audit
Service regarding the Annual Governance Statement 2022/23 and an updated
Local Code of Corporate Governance.

The Head of Shared Internal Audit informed Members that under the title
External Audit on page 44 of the agenda pack, this paragraph had been
updated (deleted text—struck through and additional text underlined shown
below) as recommended by the Independent Person via e-mail.

External Audit

In November 2022 EY provided an “unqualified” audit opinion in their annual

report for 2021/2022 which provided assurance. The Council was amongst

Page 4


https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/documents/s61734/Appendix%201%20-Cambridge%20City%20Council%20-%20Auditors%20Annual%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/documents/s61734/Appendix%201%20-Cambridge%20City%20Council%20-%20Auditors%20Annual%20Report.pdf

Civic Affairs Civ/3 Thursday, 5 December 2024

only 12% of local authorities to publish their Statement of Accounts on time for
that financial year.

In_October 2023 the Public Sector Audit Appointments highlighted a
cumulative backlog of 918 delayed opinions in the Local Government sector.
The Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities proposed a
backstop deadline, and legislation was approved to allow accounts to be
signed without a full external audit.

Progress updates have been reported to the Civic Affairs Committee in July
2023 and July 2024 with an Interim Value for Money report. The Council has
published information about the delay on our website.

In response to the Members’ questions the Head of Shared Internal Audit said
the following:

I.  The Accounts and Audit Regulations require the Council to review its
governance arrangements and prepare an Annual Governance
Statement (AGS) to accompany the Statement of Accounts.

ii. Although the draft statements were published earlier, the Council must
continue to account for the significant events up until the date that the
Statement of Accounts are approved.

lii. Noted the comment to the reference to Area Committees in the Code of
Governance which were currently suspended. Would remove the
reference before publication.

iv. Would provide information on the five complaints relating to Cambridge
City Council which had been upheld by The Local Government and
Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) outside of the meeting as did not
have the information available in the meeting.

v. From a transparency point of view, it was important to make the public
aware that there was a complaints process, and to highlight the Council
worked with the Ombudsman.

vi. The Member and Officer protocol referenced in the report could be found
in part 5 of the Council’s constitution (p352).

Constitution - Cambridge City Council

vii.  Would share the draft AGS 2023/24 with the Committee.

viii. A revised 2023/24 AGS would be brought to a future Committee meeting
with the next Statement of Accounts.

Page 5


https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=179&MId=4275&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=179&MId=4275&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=179&MId=4471&Ver=4
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/statement-of-accounts
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/constitution

Civic Affairs Civ/4 Thursday, 5 December 2024

The Committee unanimously resolved to:

I.  Approve the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) attached at Appendix
A of the Officer’s report in advance of the Statement of Accounts. Noting
the arrangements for compiling, reporting on and signing the AGS;

* the progress made on issues reported in the previous year
« the current review of effectiveness
* the issues considered for inclusion in the current AGS

ii. Note and endorse the amendments to the updated Local Code of

Corporate Governance attached at Appendix B.

24/41/Civ  Statement of Accounts 2022-23 - Audit Opinion

The committee received a report introduced by the Interim Deputy Chief
Finance Officer in regarding the Statement of Accounts 2022/2023.

Presenting the Audit Results Report was the Audit Partner from Ernst & Young
(EY).

In response to Members’ questions, the Audit Partner, EY, and the Interim
Deputy Chief Finance Officer said the following:

I.  Highlighted the local background and context of the Executive Summary.
The position had developed over the past few years resulting in
unaudited financial statements for 31 March 2023.The main reasons for
the Council’'s financial statements not being prepared, audited and
signed to date included:

e The post pandemic timelines resulted in audit teams trying to move
delayed audits on to completion, whilst finance teams were trying
to catch up, dealing with current priorities and future planning. This
used a significant amount of limited audit resource, leading to a
lack of capacity to move onto the 2022/23 audit year.

e In addition, there were several new technical issues and
challenges to address during this period, including, accounting for
infrastructure assets, while having to consider the updated pension
fund valuations, which led to some delays to the prior year 2021/22
audit being completed, with the audit opinion being signed on the
30 November 2022.

e As a result, and taken together, this has ultimately led to a lack of
capacity to be able to commence the 2022/23 audit year with
sufficient time to be able to complete the audit.

ii. There would be no further audit taken for the period.

lii. Due to the wider requirements of the local audit system reset, this meant
EY did not have the required resources available to complete the

Page 6



Civic Affairs Civ/5 Thursday, 5 December 2024

Vi.
Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

XiV.

XV.
XVI.

detailed audit procedures needed to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to issue an unmodified audit report on the 2022/23 financial
statements. Therefore, EY were disclaiming opinion on the financial
statements.

Had followed legislation set out by the Government to reset the local
audit agenda. This clearly was not ideal and did not provide the Council
the assurances that would have usually been received, but this was the
current situation.

Believed the accounts for 2022/23 were published on time but the
Council missed the 31 May deadline to publish the 2023/24 Financial
Statement and were still outstanding.

EY continued to be the appointed auditor.

Confirmed there was not enough resources to perform an audit by the
back stop date of 28th Feb 2025. The 2023/24 Financial Statement not
being available had contributed to the delay, therefore was it was
unrealistic to expect the audit to be completed in two months.

EY had two primary responsibilities, to audit the financial statements, no
detailed audit testing had been undertaken but planning work had been
completed to identify the risks that needed to be addressed. Those audit
risks could be viewed at page 96 of the agenda pack.

The second area was in relation to value for money. EY had performed
all procedures in this area and were satisfied the arrangements the
Council had in place were adequate.

In relation to 2023/24, EY would not be performing audit procedures due
to insufficient time to start and conclude an audit by the back stop date.
With regards to the 2024/25 audit, would hope the Council could publish
the draft financial statements to the timetable given in the accounting
audit regulations. EY would then perform the required audit procedures.
The Committee should be aware that it took time to unwind a disclaimed
audit opinion as there was not the assurance opening balances and
comparatives. It would be a further three years before the Council
returned all things being equal to a position where there was an
unqualified audit opinion on the Council’s financial statement.

There was 250 approximately, other local authorities across the country
in a similar position to the Councils who were likely to have a disclaimed
audit opinion.

The first year the Council could expect an unqualified audit opinion would
be 2026/27, all things being equal.

Fees for public sector audits appointments were set each year.

To rebuild assurances between now and the 2026/27 audit period,
additional work would be essential. It would be for the public sector audit

Page 7



Civic Affairs Civ/6 Thursday, 5 December 2024

XVil.

XVill.

XiX.

XX.

appointments to determine what remuneration each audit firm should get
to enable to reach an unqualified audit opinion.

All audit firms working for the public sector were in the same position, the
local authority audit market was broken. Legislation was trying to fix the
market in which all audit firms were operating.

Reiterated that the Public Sector Audit Appointments as the contract
holder set the audit fees and reviewed the level of renumeration for work
performed. They were currently determining the fees for 2022/23.

The Council had not published the 2022/23 financial statements by the
due date of 31%t May but June 22". At that point there was a risk of
significant weakness as the Council could not publish on the date due.
Further work on the value for money concluded it was not unreasonable
to be 23 days late in the context of where the local audit currently was.
The incoming expenditure account had aligned with international
accounting standards.

The Head of Shared Internal Audit stated he would be happy to speak with EY
to determine if there were any opportunities for the Internal Audit Team to
provide assurance to Members. It was important not to duplicate work and it
was not a substitute for a full external audit.

Before the vote the Head of Internal Audit shared with the Committee,
comments made by the Independent Person for information.

The Committee unanimously resolved to:

Receive the Audit Results Report presented by EY and the unaudited
statement of accounts for 2022-23.

Approve the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023
based on the current Reset and Recovery legislation.

That the Chair of the meeting be authorised to sign the Management
representation letter as shown in Appendix A of the Officer's Report for
Those Charged with Governance.

24/42/Civ Officer Delegated Decisions

Record of Officer Delegated Decision - To Implement the Joint Negotiating
Committee for Chief Executives of Local Authorities Pay Award for 2024-25.
The Committee noted the decision.

Page 8



Civic Affairs Civi7 Thursday, 5 December 2024

Record of Officer Urgent Decision - To Implement the National Joint Council
Local Government Services Pay Agreement 2024
The Committee noted the decision.

The meeting ended at 6.41 pm

CHAIR

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 5

REPORT TITLE: Constitutional Changes to Cambridge City Council in regards of

Planning.

To:
Executive Councillor

Civic Affairs Committee (5" February 2025)

Report by:
Jane Rodens Area Development Manager
Email: Jane.rodens@greatercambridgeplanning.org

Wards affected:

All
1. Recommendations
1.1 It is recommended the Civic Affairs Committee:
a. Recommends to Council approval of the changes to the Council Constitution as set
out in Appendices A and B
b. approves the amended Public Speaking Rights at Planning Committee Appendix C
c. approves the Members Planning Good Practice Guide Appendix D
Members are to note that there are proposed changes being made to the City Constitution as
part of the review of governance arrangements, these updates will transfer into any updated
constitution moving forward.
2. Purpose and reason for the report
2.1 The reason for this recommendation is to revise the Council constitution to allow for the Planning

Committee to determine the extent and form of the officers scheme of delegation. A revised
scheme of officer delegation is also proposed following an extensive review of the Planning
Committee process with members which resulted in 49 recommendations aimed at enhancing
the effectiveness of the Planning Committee and increasing consistency of approach across the
Shared Planning Service to aid understanding and support increased participation and in the
process. The report is accompanied by updated Public Speaking Guidance and a Member Good
Practice Guide that complement the revisions to the Constitution proposed. A copy of the report

containing the 49 recommendations is attached at Appendix E.

Page 11




3.1

4.1

Alternative options considered

Not to revise the Constitution, Public Speaking and Member Good Practice guide. This would not
realise objective of greater agility, consistency or transparency underpinning the Committee
Review project previously considered by the Planning Committee and has been rejected.

Background and key issues

In 2020 the Planning Advisory Service (PAS) undertook a review of all three Planning Committees
that are supported by the Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service (GCSP). A further review
has been undertaken by a Member and Officer working group, where 49 recommendations have
been made. Some of which are to streamline the Planning Committee process and improve
transparency, improving the experience for all “users” of the Planning Committee process.
Improving statutory and service Key performance indicators (KPIs) for decision making on

planning and related applications.

A Planning Reform Working Paper: Planning Committees (December 2024) has been published
which is to bring a standardisation and certainty to applicants when an application is to be
determined by a Planning Committee. Over 90% of decisions are currently delegated to Officers
(from 1/1/24 to 1/11/14) in the GCSP. Whilst this is broadly in line with the current national
average according to PAS. This reform paper has the aim to focus Planning Committees time to

the most sensitive / complex applications.

In 2024 there were 151 Planning applications heard between the three planning committees that
GCSP cover, equating to over 156 hours (equivalent to nearly 4 and a half weeks) of Member
and officers time spent in the committees, in a total of 37 meetings. The committee process
represents a very significant investment in scarce capacity and resources by each of the Councils
and it is therefore critical, given the opportunity cost of that time, that this investment is targeted
to have the greatest benefit for the Communities that both Councils serve. This reflects the need
identified by PAS and agreed by Members, of making the most efficient use of officer and member

time at Committees by focusing on the most sensitive / complex applications.
The below recommendations are in Appendices B, C and D of this report and have been

considered and endorsed, or at the time of writing this report are due to be considered by the

following Planning Committees.

Page 12



a. Cambridge City Planning Committee — 8th January 2025 (Endorsed)
b. South Cambridge District Council — 15th January 2025 (Endorsed)
c. Joint Development Control Committee — 22nd January 2025 (Endorsed)

Where there have been recommended amendments at the committees, these have been made
to the Appendices in this report.

The proposals seek to:

e Align the three Planning Committees approach through a clear set of common criteria
which help filter and more clearly define those applications that are to be brought before
committee.

o Refine the types of applications that are reported to committee for determination -
ensuring the Planning Committee is able to focus on the more complex, significant and
controversial applications to be determined.

To achieve this objective, the recommendations seek to establish a single Greater Cambridge
Shared Planning Service Scheme of Delegation in respect of planning and related functions (in
Appendix B) and introduce a Delegation Panel for Cambridge City Committee and Joint
Development Management Committee. This is complemented with the revised scheme for Public
Speaking at Planning Committee (Appendix C) and a Members Planning Good Practice Guide
(Appendix D).

Following discussion at SCDC Planning Committee, Paragraphs 3.10 to 3.12 of Appendix D have
been revised with Paragraphs 3.10 to 3.12 to ensure the wording relating to the different types of
interest is consistent and further clarified. Any further revisions proposed at the Joint

Development Control Committee meeting will be reported verbally.

The relevant Planning matters are recommended to be removed out of the South Cambridgeshire
District Council and Cambridge City Council Constitutions and placed in these three documents.
The constitutions for South Cambridgeshire District Council and Cambridge City Council in
regards of Planning do not currently align nor are they up to date in terms of reflecting the most
recent Government Guidance and legislation in relation to planning. Having the detail of officer
delegations outside of the constitutions, means that in future changes in legislation or refinements
to the officer scheme of delegation can be carried out more efficiently without a need to amend
the constitution. This will be particularly helpful in response to the planning reform agenda of the

Government which may impact process changes to the current planning regime.

Page 13



51

6.1

7.1

The changes that are being recommended to the Council Constitution are in Appendix A of this
report. The sections that are to be removed and placed in the documents are detailed in the
Appendix along with where the new Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service Scheme of
Delegation in respect of planning and related functions December 2024 is to be referenced.

In Summary the details of the Scheme of Delegation to Planning Committee is removed along
with the areas of Delegation to Officers, the details of the Joint Development Control Committee

and The Planning Code of Good Practice.

Members are to note that there are also proposed changes being made to SCDC Council
Constitution as part of the review of governance arrangements, these updates will transfer into

any updated constitution moving forward.
Consultation, engagement and communication

The proposed revisions form part of a wider programme focused upon developing the Planning
Committee which have been subject to an extensive period of engagement with Members and
users of the Shared Planning Service. The proposed detail changes outlined in the Appendices
have been subject of reports to each Planning Committee served by the Greater Cambridge
Shared Planning Service. The Changes to the Officer scheme of delegation have been the
subject of significant engagement with Legal officers within 3C Legal Services.

Anticipated outcomes, benefits or impact

The anticipated outcomes and benefits are that, the Planning service refines the types of
application that are brought to Planning Committee and aligns the process which determines how
a decision is made in order to allow the Committees to consistently focus on the more complex,
significant and controversial applications whilst also improving consistency and transparency to
the processing of all planning and related applications to be determined.

Implications

Relevant risks

The risks associated with the process are those that already apply to the Councils constitution

and Scheme of Delegation; that ambiguity or a lack of clarity around the drafting and process

Page 14



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

bring reputational damage and prevent the timely determination of planning matters by the Local
Planning Authority in line with national requirements. To mitigate that risk, alongside the ISO 9001
Quiality Assurance process already in place across the Shared Planning Service, the revisions
proposed have been prepared by and in close consultation with officers from the respective Legal
Services and Democratic Services Teams.

Financial Implications

The cost of the Planning Committee meetings, reflecting the amount of Member time, but also
the significant officer input to prepare, attend and administer a meeting are already significant.
The Councils existing staff and resources budgets cover these costs. The changes recommended
are not anticipated to increase the frequency of Planning Committee meetings but are designed
to make the investment of time and resources effective. These proposals do not introduce
additional costs but will indirectly support ongoing work to increase impact and effectiveness the

Council and the Shared Planning Service.

Legal Implications

The recommended changes do include amendments to the schemes of delegation, and
constitution; these recommendations have been agreed by all three of the Planning Committees
and therefore are being recommended in this report for changes to the constitutions.

Equalities and socio-economic Implications

The proposed changes are not anticipated to impact any specific protected characteristics and
accordingly an equalities assessment has not been carried out in respect of the Appendices
attached.

Net Zero Carbon, Climate Change and Environmental implications

None

Procurement Implications

None

Community Safety Implications

None

Page 15



9.1

Background documents

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

None
Appendices

Appendix A: Changes to Cambridge City Council Constitution

Appendix B: Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service Officer Scheme of Delegation in

respect of planning and related functions December 2024 and associated
Appendix C: Public Speaking Rights at Planning Committee

Appendix D: Members Planning Good Practice Guide

Appendix E - Committee Review Outcome Report, August 2024 (excluding appendices)

Page 16



Cambridge City Council Constitution Summary of Track changes

1. Deletion and update of the table in Part 3, Section 8, 8.2. pg 68

Change of section title “Joint Development Control (Cambridge Fringes)” to “Joint

Development Management (Cambridge Fringes)”
Remove the reference to “JDCC Terms of Reference and Standing Order . pdf
(Cambridge.gov.uk)” and replace with
“Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service Scheme of officer delegation in
respect of planning and related functions” and relevant link to document.

2. Deletion and update of 5.7 page 104
Insert “Details in the Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service Scheme of
delegation in respect of planning and related functions” as the last bullet points on

page 104.

Deletion of “Delegated by Planning Committee / Executive” onwards to the start of
section 10. The deletion of pages 104 to 110.

3. Deletion of Appendix B2 (Page 151 — 155)

4. Deletion of Public speaking at Planning Committee (Page 180 — 182)
Inclusion of “Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service Scheme of officer
delegation in respect of planning and related functions” after Planning committee
(see...) on page 178
Deletion of pages 180 — 182 — 1. Public Speaking at Planning Committee

5. Deletion of Part 4: Planning Code of Good Practice Pages 351 -362

6. Update of the contents page to reflect the above changes.

Page 17



Page iv — 8.2, page 68 - “Joint Development Control (Cambridge Fringes)” to “Joint

Development Management (Cambridge Fringes)”
Page vi — Appendix B2. 151 — Delete

Page xii / xiii— Part 4 Planning Code of Good Practice — Delete

Page 18



Cambridge City Council Constitution: Part 3 — Discharge of Council Functions Page 68

SECTION 8: JOINT COMMITTEES AND OTHER PARTNERSHIP
BODIES

8.1 Introduction

8.1.1 This section sets out the joint committees and partnership bodies on
which the Council is represented. It gives details of who is responsible
for making appointments to the different bodies and the bodies’
purpose or terms of reference.

8.2 =—demitBeveloprentSonrtroHSerisrdgerirgesy

Joint Development Management (Cambridge Fringes)

Appointed by: Council (6 politically proportional to
seats on Council)[note: 6 Members
appointed by South Cambridgeshire
District Council]

Terms of Reference:

For full details please see:

Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service Scheme of officer delegation in respect of

planning and related functions

8.6 Cambridge City Joint Area Committee- disbanded by County
Council 31.7.20

Who represents the City Council

Appointed by:

Terms of Reference:

Page 19



Cambridga Cily Council Constitution: Part 3 — Discharge of Council Funclions Page 104

5.7 Joint Director of Planning in respect of planning and
development control

Service area delegations
+ Planning Service

Building Control (3C service)

Dangerous Buildings, structures and excavations

Street Naming

Regulatory functions under the Buildings Act and other legislation

concerned with safety, sanitation, health and structural condition of

buildings.

Specific area delegation by the Executive

+ To approve grants from the Historic Buildings Fund and to approve
Access Grants up to the value of £5,000

+ To operate and negotiate building control fees as necessary (recording
the fees agreed) in response to the dictates of the market and other
relevant circumstances in adjusting fee levels on major developments
that are likely to be subject to particular competition from private
Approved Inspectors as long as overall budgel targets are met

e Details in the Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service Scheme of delegation

in respect of planning and related functions

Specific regulatory power delegated

o To act as the proper officer under Section 191 of the Local Government
Act 1972 with respect to ordnance survey.

Delegated by Planning Committee/ Executive

Buildings and Conservation anegs
circumstances:

elopment Plan policy and where the officer recommendatio
approval.

Last updated 05.09.24

Page 20



Cambridge City Council Constilution: Part 3 — Discharge of Council Funclions Page 103

« The application is for development of between 1-9 dwellings, where
there are third party representations on planning grounds that are
contrary to the officer recommendation and that cannot be resglved by
planning condition.

» \The application is for development invelving a change of use #here there
Ne third party representations on planning grounds thal age contrary to
th&, officer recommendation and thal cannot be resolvgld by planning
conWjtion.

= The agplication involves the City Council as applicant/r landowner and
the devwglopment is not of a minor nature.

+= The appiNation is for the demolition of a listed bufding or a Building of

Local Intergst.
The applicailon is submitted by a Member or officer of the City Council.
The application is for a ‘non-material’ changgfamendment in relation to
a development Xyat was previously approveg by Planning Committee or
an Area Commitida, and the Chair, Vice-Clfair and Spokesperson of that
Committee object I\ the exercise of the g€legated power within 14 days
of notification.

+ The application is one \Where, within 2/ days of the date of publication of
the weekly list, or within\\4 days of (£ceipt of any subsequent significant
amendment to the still cuNent profosal, any Member (including County
Council Members represenipg Gty Wards) requests in writing (including
e-mail sent in accordance \yfth the Council's guidelines), that the
application should be determpi\ed by Committee, stating the planning
grounds on which the requeft is\pased.

= The application requires /a PlanNing Obligation (or any subsequent
amendment thereof) conjaining term\g that are not in accordance with, or
are additional to, thos¢ required by Yhe Council’s Planning Obligation
Strategy.

* The application is o that in the opinion & officers should be determined
by Committee Jecause of special \planning policy or other
considerations.

Note: ' Major develgfment comprises:
o 10 or more ghwellings, or a site area of 0.5 ha. or Mgre where the number
of dwellings is not shown;
o Other defrelopments where the floor space to be Dyilt is 1000 square
metres/gross) or more, or where the site area is 0.5 ig. or more in size.

A2. To sgfve Requisitions for Information, Planning Contravagtion MNotices,
Breach gf Condition Notices, Notices of Intended Entry, Section'15 Notices,
and Digfontinuance Notices for advertisements (subject to prior dgnsultation
with th& Head of Legal and Practice).

A3. / To instruct the Head of Legal Practice to commence proNecution
profeedings for the display of illegal advertisements (including fly posting) and
off non-compliance with any formal notices issued.

A4.  Toinstruct the Head of Legal Practice to serve enforcement notices urier
5172 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to remedy a breach §f
planning control following the refusal of retrospective planning permission.

Last updated 05.09 24 Page 21



Cambridge City Council Constilution: Part 3 — Discharge of Council Funclions Page 106

43. To instruct the Head of Legal Practice to serve Listed Building Enforcepfent
Rtices under 538 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Hfreas)
Aci\1990.
AB. o instruct the Head of Legal Practice lo serve notlices requiripg urgent
works\lo unoccupied Listed Buildings under 554 of the Plannifg (Listed
Buildingg and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.
AT. ToNecide whether to serve a Remedial Notice under Parl/8 of the Anti-
Social BehNyiour Act 2003 where there are no third party reprgSentations that
are contrary Yo the officer recommendation (subject to prior £onsultation with
the Head of Degal Practice) and to instruct the Head of Aegal Practice to
commence prodgcution proceedings for non-compliancg with a Remedial
Notice or to carry Qut works in default.
A8. To make rephesentations as a ‘responsible authgfity' on applications for
public entertainment Ncenses under the Licensing A 003.

B1. To determine all Applications for works to frees under the Town and
Country Planning Act 1991\ and for works to hedgérows under the Environment
Act 1995, except in any of e following circumgtances:

+« The application is one\where there ape third party representations on
amenity grounds that ale contrary tgf the officer recommendation and
that cannot be resolved.

« The application is one whyre, within 14 days of being notified, any
Member (including County CORupfil Members representing City Wards)
requests in writing (including e-mail sent in accordance with the
Council's guidelines), that tffe \gpplication should be determined by
Committee, stating the groyhds on\which the request is based.

B2. To serve, and unless objgftions are rexeived, confirn Tree Preservation
Orders and Hedgerow Replagément Notices.

B3. To instruct the Head Af Legal Practice X take enforcement action or
instigate proceedings undgr part (viii) of the Towp and Country Planning Act
1990 relating to violatighs against protected treks, and under S97 of the
Environment Act 1995 gélating to violations against pXotected hedgerows.

Note: MNotwithstagfing the provisions contained wWhin this Scheme of
Delegation, officerg will use their discretion and judgmeniNo decide whether to
refer any matter gontained within this Scheme to Committeg for determination,
which in their vjéw raises contentious, sensitive or significarX policy issues, or
where it woulg/be otherwise beneficial for the decision to be maNe by Members.

Schedule feferred to in Delegation A1 above

Applicaffons and other forms of consentnotification referred to in Delegation A1
includg:

Outline and full planning permission and any subseguent applicaons
for post-decision ‘non-material’ changes/amendments.

* Reserved matters following outline planning permission and a
subsequent  applications for post-decision ‘non-material
changes/amendments.

Last updated 05.09.24

Page 22



Cambridge City Council Constitution: Part 3 — Discharge of Council Funclions Page 10

Renewals of planning permission and any subsequent applicatiogs for
posl-decision ‘non-malerial' changes/amendments.

Remaoval/variation of planning conditions.

Pischarge of conditions.

Wgreeing the terms of Planning Obligations under S106 of thg Town and
CoNntry Planning Act 1990.

Advegtisement Consent.

LawfuNDevelopment Certificates.

County Kouncil Regulation 3 applications.

Prior notifations and approvals under a Developmgnt Order.

Goods Vehle Operating Licences.

Listed Building ConsentL.

Conservation Axea Consent.

Consultations fro\p neighbouring authorities.

Screening and scoging opinions under the Aown and Country Planning
(Environmental Impagt Assessment) (Engfand and Wales) Regulations
1999, or any subskgguent amendmgnt or successors lo those
Regulations.

Screening and scoping\opinions Wnder the Conservation (Matural
Habitats, etc) Regulations\ 1994 of any subsequent amendments or
successors o those Regulatigns

Screening and scoping opiNghs under the Environmental Impact
Assessment (Uncultivated Lapid, and Semi-natural Areas) Regulations
2001 or any subsequent/am¥pdments or successors lo those
Regulations

Planning enforcement:

Delegation to Shared/Director of Planning\Xin consultation with Head of
Legal Practice and ZhairVice Chair/Spoke\of Planning Committes):

ion or works in default as réguired in relation to
Compliance with an Enforcem¥gnt Notice) and Section
liance with a Section 215 Notice) Nf Town and Country
1990 (as amended) and to recover frolg the person who is
ner of the land any expenses reasonably ocurred by the
undertaking this work under Regulation 14 o the Town and
lanning General Regulations 1992

A To take direct
Section 178 (N
219 (Non Co
Planning
then the

Enjrcement Notice under Section 179 or Planning ContraveNtion
ice under Section 171D of the Town and Country Planning Yct 1990
s amended)

C To seek an injunction to restrain a breach of planning control under
Section 187B of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended)

D To make an application for a Confiscation Order under the Proceeds
of Crime Act 2002 (as amended)

Last updated 05.09.24 Page 23



Cambridge Cily Council Constitution: Part 3 — Discharge of Council Funclions Page 10

Delegation to Shared Director of Planning, the Enforcement and
Maonitoring Officer. the Delivery Manager (Development Managernfent)
and/or the Delivery Manager (Strategic Sites)

bject to a valid request for ‘call in’ to Planning Committee, fo issue
ani serve Enforcement Notices under Sections 172 and 21§ clearance
of urNjdy land and Listed Building Enforcement Notices unfler Section
38 Town and Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Cogfiservation
Areas) Act 1990 of the Town and Country Planning
amended\after consultation with the Head of Legal
to include Ngning, service, varying or withdrawing
Notices.

To issue and sexve Temporary Stop Notices unfer Sections 171E to
171H and Stop NYtices under Section 183 of jhe Town and Country
Planning Act 1990Yas amended) and assogfated Enforcement Notices
after consultation wily the Head of Legal Pfactice. Authority to include
signing, service, varyiNg or withdrawing porary Stop Notices and
Stop Notices.

Delegation to the Enforcemyent and Monitoring Officer. the Delivery
Manager (Development Manggems/nt) and/or the Delivery Manager
(Strategic Sites)

All other enforcement related tfsXs, investigations, operational
decisions, investigations and AerviXe of notices relating to development,
trees and hedges, the histoflc envirdgment, advertisements, and
hazardous substances, al/under the iglevant legislation and to close
cases where it is not expldient to pursde enforcement action.

In consultation with the Executive Councillor, scrutiny\committee chair and
spokes make Article 4/Directions in respect of public h\uses and BLI's(Local

Heritage Assets) whfre evidence suggests significant hayn is possible
through the exercige of permitted development rights.

Scheme of Dflegation as agreed by the Joint Development\Control
Committee duly 2020:

T following powers are delegated to the Joint Director of PlanNpg and
Fconomic Development in respect of planning and development ogntrol
matters. . The Joint Director of Planning and Economic Developme

may authorise any other officers within the Greater Cambridge Shared
Planning Service to exercise these powers on his/her behalf. Any offica
so0 authorised may in turn delegate further.

Such delegations shall be evidenced in writing.

Last updated 05.09.24 Page 24



Cambridge City Council Constitution: Part 3 — Discharge of Council Funclions Page 105

1. Todetermine, and to make decisions in connection with the
determination of, all forms of planning and other applications, a/d all
prms of consent and other notifications (as set out in the attaghed
sdhedule) submitted under the Town and Country Planning gct 1990 (as
amynded by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004) and the
PlanNng (Listed Buildings and Conservation areas) Act %990 within the
terms §f reference of the Joint Development Control Cgfmmittee except
in any oNthe following circumstances:

a) Where th¢ application is for Outline or Full Pe sion or is a reserved
matters applifation in respect of:

1. The provision\of residential units where:
(a) the number of \esidential units to be proyded is 100 or more.

2. The provision of a Non-residential builgfng or buildings where the floor
space lo be created by\he developmenfis 1,000 square metres or more
or is for non-residential d¢velopment §f be carried out on a site having
an area of 1 hectare or moge;

3. Development including the\prgfision of primary roads, open space or
other site-wide infrastructure thy fulfils a strategic purpose,

4. Regulation 3 developmenyfor aNnew facilities.

b) Where:

- There are any parish cofncil represaptations that are contrary to the
officer recommendationfor approval or)

- There are other thirdfparty representatidgs on planning grounds that
are contrary to the officer recommendatiorNor approval or refusal and
that cannot be addjéssed by conditions as agplicable or;

c) The applicatigh is advertised as a formal depgrture from the
Development Plan and where the officer recommgndation is for
approval.

d) The apglication is submitted by a Member or Chief Qfficer or planning
officer gf either of the Councils.

e) The application is one where, within 21 days of being no\fied of the
appfication or within 14 days of receipt of any subsequent mXerial
aghendment to the proposal, any Member of the City Council o of the
Plistrict Council requests in writing (including e-mail), that the apRlication
should be determined by Committee, stating the planning groundXon
which the request is based.

f) The application is one that officers consider should be determined b
Committee because of special planning policy or other considerations.

Last updated 05.09.24 Page 25



Cambridga Cily Council Constitution: Part 3 — Discharge of Council Funclions Page 110,

g) The application is for a “non-material” change/amendment in relatgn
to a development that was previously approved by the Joint Commjlee
and either i) the elements to be changed were subject to specific
onditions or i) negotiation in response to objections raised to the
orlyinal approval, and in both cases where the Chair, Vice-Chafr and
Spokespersons of the Commiltee object to the exercise of th delegated
poweNwithin 14 days of notification.

5. To act oy behalf of the Committee (after consultatioy, if practicable
with the Cha\r of the Committee and the Chief Planniflg Officers of the
three Council in cases of urgency or emergency. Any such action is to
be reported as Noon as possible to the Committeg/

Note: Notwithstandng the provisions contained within this Scheme of
Delegation, officers Will use their discretion apid judgement to decide
whether to refer any matter contained withigf this Scheme to the
Committee for determingtion, which in theff view raises contentious,
sensitive or significant poXgy issues, or yhere it would be otherwise
beneficial for the decision I§ be made pfy Members of the Joint
Committee.

Schedule referred to in Delegition 1 above

Applications and other forms of ghpsent/notification referred to in
Delegation A1 include:

a) Outline and full planning pgrmissidn and any subsequent pre- and
post decision amendments

b) Reserved matters folloyfing outline piypning pemmission and any pre
and post decision amengments.

c) Renewals of planning permission and anY pre- and post-decision
amendments.

d) Removal/variatioff of planning conditions.

&) Discharge of cghditions.

f) Advertisement/Consent.

g) Lawful Devefopment Certificates.

h) Regulation/3 applications.

i} Settling th& terms of planning agreements under secNon 106, Town
and Counjfy Planning Act 1990 and other legislation in agcordance with
the termg of any resolution or decision to grant planning ciypsent.

j) Listed Building Consent.

k) Copfservation Area Consent.

|} Sgfeening and scoping opinions under the Town and Countri\Planning
(Efivironmental Impact Assessment) (England and Wales) Regultions
J011, or any subsequent amendment to those Regulations.

m) Entering into and Signing of Planning Performance Agreements.

Last updated 05.09.24 page 26



\

Cambridga Cily Council Constitution: Part 44 - Council Procedure Rulas PAge 151

3

\ Appendix B2: Development Control Forums

N\

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL FORUM /

OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES /

Receipt of Petitions and Notification of Developfment Control Forum

1.

Neighbdyur consultation letters on plannigy applications draw attention to
the pos=pility of a Development Cghtrol Forum being held on an
application\ There is a further referegfe in a "Your Chance to Comment’
leaflet and iNere is also a separate JOevelopment Control Forum' leaflet.
The informatidg is also available op/the Council's website.

Petitions requesigg a Developgfent Control Forum should be sent to the
Committee SectioN, who shoyld then send a copy to the development
control support tear\in the Pjanning Department. In the event of petitions
being sent directly to\the Pfanning Department, the Planning Department
should retain a copy any y&nd the original to the Committee Section.

On receipt, the CommijfeeN\gection in liaison with the planning case officer,
will check that the petjfion miets all the eligibility criteria for a Development
Control Forum to be held. \Genior officer advice will be taken where
necessary. |If theé pelition dges not meet the eligibility criteria the
Committee sectign will contact Yoe lead petitioner(s) immediately to let
them know thata Development Cagtrol Forum will not be held and that the
petition will b reported direct to Yhe relevant Committee through the
officer’s repgft on the application.

The eligitlity criteria are:

A petiyon that solely relates to comments o\an eligible planning
applj£ation that is under consideration. The petition must state clearly
wht the planning concemns are about the applization and whether it is an
gftright in principle objection to the developmenNor not. If it is not the
petiioners are encouraged in the petition to briefly\say in their own words
what changes might be made to the development to\pvercome their
concerns. Petitioners will be expected to explain wha} changes they are
seeking at the Development Control Forum meeting itsaf.

oA petition containing at least 25 signatures and addresseX of Cambridge
City residents

= A peliion of objection that is received within the inilgl 21 day
consultation period

= A petition of support but anly if there is also a qualifying petition of

Last updated 05.09.24

Page 27




Cambridge City Council Constilulion: Part 44 - Council Procedura Rules Page 17

objection to be considered. It must be received within 7 dgfs of the
close of the initial 21 day consultation period

5. Applications that are not eligible to be considergd at a
Development Control Forum are:

o Applications to alter, extend or carry out other wopks to a house
and its surroundings (‘householder applications)

o ARplications to create a new single house or/fther single
res\dential unit

o Applicytions for a change of use of an efisting building(s)

o Applicatiogs for works or alterations 6 existing buildings or other
structures &eating no additional flogr space

o Applications fog new commercig/development of less than 200
square metres (Nross) additionél floor space

o Applications for adWertisemgnls

o Applications to determy whether a use of land or buildings needs
planning permission (JANful development certificate’)
o Applications for wopks or allgrations to listed buildings

{applications for L)Sted Building Consent)

o Applications tg/demolish a buildiNg(s) in a conservation area
{applications for Conservation Arey Consent)

o Applicatiofis by telecommunications ogde system operators asking
whether fhe local authority’s “prior appiyval’ is needed to the sitting
and appearance of works that would othdpwise be ‘permitted
devejopment’ not requiring planning permiNsion (Prior Approval
notification)

o Zelitions expressing an outright in principle objdgtion to the
application with no suggestions for a compromisa\solution

o Petitions not received within the above timescales

ormally a Forum will not be held for a petition relating to an aypendment
to a current application or where a Forum has already been heldon the
current application. Senior officers and Chair and Spokesperson(y) of the
relevant Committee that will determine the application have the fina
decision on such requests.

6. If the request is eligible, the Committee section will liaise with the planning
case officer about the date of the Development Control Forum. It will normally

Last updated 05.09.24 Page 28



Cambridge Cily Council Constitulion: Part 44 - Council Procedure Rulas Papk 153

be on the next available reserved Wednesday in the week aftef a Planning
Committee meeting provided that:

o The 21 days consultation period has elapsed
o At least 7 days (not working days) notice is given/o all those who
are entitled to attend and take part in the Foru

7. The CommNtee section will contact the lead petitioner(s) ang the applicant (or the
agent where\here is one) to confirm the date of the Forunymeeting. Petitioners
and applicant\will be expected to meet the next availablf date, because of the
tight deadlines Iye Council has in determining planning/applications.

8. If two or myge petitions are received for the Same application the
petitioners wN| be encouraged to make a jfint presentation. If this is not
possible they Will normally share the ovefall time allocation set out in the
meeting proced\re.

9. The Committee seNion will send wftten invitations to:

o The lead petitioger(s)

o The applicant anN agen

o Members of the Cogqpfittee that will be responsible for determining
the application

o Ward Councillers

o Planning Officers

All other City Council)ors will also'Re informed that the meeting is taking
place. The press Igb will be informid.

The invitations tg/the meeting should iNclude:

o Applicgfion details

o Planpging case officer and Committe section contact details for further
infg/mation and advice
o Byef summary of purpose of the Forum\and meeting details

The DeAelopment Control Forum Meeting
10. he Press and Public are entitled to attend meelings as {bservers.

11 A senior officer in the Planning Department will chair the megting.
MNormally this will be the Head of Development Services or hi\deputy.

12.  The style of the Forum will be informal, but the authority of the CRair must
be recognised. The decision of the Chair on any question of proceNjure
will be final. Mo votes will be taken.

13. The format of the Forum will be as follows:

Page 29

Last updated 05.09.24



Cambridge City Council Constitution: Part 44 - Council Procedure Rulas Page 14

o Introduction by Chair and declaration of Councillor jiterests
= up to 5 minutes

\ Presentation of the application by the applicant/agept (up to 3
representatives) — up to 15 minutes

o Presentation of the views of the petitioners agajist the application
p to 3 representatives) — up to 15 minutes

o Prexentation of the views of the petitioners/in support of the
applisation (where applicable) (up to 3 refresentatives) — up to 16
minutig

o Presentatign by the planning officer /£ up to 10 minutes

o Member queNions and issues arjfing — up to 30 minutes
o Summing up by Ye petitionery against the application-up to §
minutes

o Summing up by the p¥titigners in support of the application — up to
5 minutes

o Final comments of the ChNr

In exceptional circumstances tife order of phpceedings may be changed al the
discretion of officers and the Zhair and Spokksperson(s) of the relevant
Committee.

After the Meeting/of the Forum

14.

15.

The Committgg Section representative will takX notes of the meeting. The
notes will be/a summary of the proceedings. NNthing said by Councillors
at the mefling will in any way be binding op the Committee that
subsequeitly determines the application. The draft Wotes will be circulated
to the Chair and the planning case officer for agreeynent. The finalised
notes yill be sent to the following, normally within 7 Working days of the
Foruph meeting:

The petitioners’ representatives

The applicant’s representatives

All Councillors of the relevant decision making Commitlke
Ward Councillors

Any other Councillor who attended

OO0 ONO

The notes of the meeting will be appended to the Committee report.

The planning case officer should contact the applicants/agent after the
meeting to discuss the outcome of the meeting and to follow up any further
action that is necessary. The applicant will be encouraged to keep in direct

Last updated 05.09.24 Page 30



Cambridge Cily Council Constitution: Part 44 - Council Procedure Rulas BAge 155

contact with the pelitioners and to seek their views on ghy proposed
amendment/s.

6.  The Council will follow its normal neighbour notification procedures on
any amendments to the application.

17. \ Along with other individuals who may have made Jepresentations on the
applicalion, the petitioners’ representatives will be infoymed of the date of the
meeting\at which the application is to be considered b Committee and of their
public spagking rights. The Committee report will be fublicly available five clear
days befora\the Committee meeting.

Last updated 05.09.24

Page 31



Cambridge City Council Constitution:
Part 4B - Access to Information Procedure Rules Paga 178

Appendix 2: Public speaking rights

1. Public speaking rights at Council meetings and
committees

Set out below is the scheme that allows members of the public to speak at
Cambridge City Council meetings.

If you have any questions on the scheme, please contact the Council's
Committes Section at The Guildhall, email
democratic.servicesi@cambridge.gov.uk

To which bodies does the right to speak apply?

Meetings of the full Council, all committees, sub-committees and working
parties; with the exception of:

« Planning Committee (see k)
Taxi Licensing Sub-Committees,
public speaking rights;

d Licensing Sub-Committees and
g their own schemes for

Greater
« Any working parties which are not open to the public; Cambridge Shared
« The Employment Appeals Sub-Committes Planning Service

Scheme of officer

It also applies where an executive councillor is making a decision in public
without the presence of a scrutiny committee. Where this is the case, delegation in
references in this scheme to the Chair shall be read as referring to the

executive councillor. respect of planning

and related

Is it a right to ask questions or to make statements? :
functions

Both.
How should questions or statements be addressed?

At Council meetings, to the Chair of the relevant committee, or to the relevant
member of the Executive, as determined by the Mayor. At Committee mestings
etc., to the Chair of the meeting or to the appropriate Executive Councillor if it
relates to an Executive function. However, in both cases, the Chair or Executive
Councillor may invite another member or an officer to respond.

For the benefit of Councillors and others, speakers should begin by saying who
they are, if they are speaking for themselves or a groupl/organisation and if the
latter an indication of how many people are involved.

Are questions and/or statements confined to matters on the agenda or

permitted on all matters within the Committee's (or other body's) areas
of responsibility ?

Last updated 05.08.24

Page 32



Cambridge Cily Council Constifution:
Part 4B — Access o Information Procedure Rules Page 180

=  Where the question concemns actual or potential legal proceedings
involving the Council;

« Where responding to a question would involve a disproportionate use
of resources in compiling an answer;

+ Where there has been insufficient time to research an answer before
the meeting.

The Chair or Executive Councillor may refuse to permit a question or a
statement if it (or something similar) has already been put or made to another
meeting of a Council committee or other body. The Chair may also discourage
repetition and limit rights of address if more than one member of the public
wishes to make a similar point. The Chair may determine the order in which
guestions and statements may be put.

When in the meeting are questions or statements made?

This is left o the discretion of the Chair but, ordinarily, questions and
statements will be dealt with at the beginning of the meeting. However, where
a statement or a question relates to a matter on the agenda it may be
appropriate for it to be put immediately preceding the consideration of the item
by the committee or other body.

Can there be any debate on questions or statements?

The Chair may comment on a response 1o a question or a statement if it has
been referred by him/her to another member or to an officer but there is to be
no general debate. If a question or statement relates to an item on the
agenda, points arising from it may be pursued when the item is under
consideration. If an item is not on the agenda, members are entitled to
request its inclusion at a future meeting.

What if there is any dispute about procedure or the interpretation or
application of these rules?

The Chair's decision is final.

ublic speaking at Planning Committee

Members of the [c, or applicants or their agents, ant to speak about
an application which is considered at a g of the committee can do
so if they have:

™ In the case of ubmitted a written

representali

rs of the public, alre
n application; and

Notified the Administrator by 12.00 noon on the day before the
meeting.

Last updated 05.00.24 Page 33



Cambridga Cily Council Constitution:
Fart 4B — Access to Information Procedure Rules Page 121

A\nember of the public who has made a written representation on a plagning
apiication which is to be determined by the committee, will be notified infvriting
abouN the committee date and their public speaking rights in the weel before
the colgmittee meeting.

At the Cogmittee Meeting

A list of pubN¢ speakers is available at the meeting. Agenda/items for which
there are publiy speakers are taken first, normally in the ordef of the agenda.

Each speaker W be allowed three minutes in wjfich to make their
representation. The\ Chair will tell the speaker when jhe three minutes has
elapsed and the speXker must stop when requested fy the Chair. The Chair
has discretion to extenX this time limit.

If more than one persor\wants o make a repf/esentation about the same
application, then they shouly chose someone lg/act as a spokesperson. When
several people wish lo speakyn the same appjfcation but wish to raise different
issues, the Chair may agree Yo those spegkers making representations. In
these circumstances, less time May need t¢f be given to each speaker.

The Chair will ask the speaker to Nomg to the table at the beginning of the
discussion of the report on the relevaglt application. The Chair will then invite
them to speak following the OffigbNg introduction to the report on the
application.

The speaker should address th¢ Chair of the Committee, which is the normal
convention for Committees.

Speakers should remembey/to:
[ Keep to 3 minutey or whalever other period hYs been agreed.
[ Keep to the plgnning issues raised by the applica{jon.

[ Highlight thg main points they wish to raise and be a§ brief and concise
as possible.

™ Be coyftecus.

[ Al Yhe end of public speaking, the Committee will discuss anN
determipé the planning application.

If a sfeaker is attending the meeting to speak about a particular matter Which
Coyficillors are considering on thaf day, the Chair of the meeting will arraNge
fofthe relevant item and associated report to be considered early in the
geeting, so that the speaker can leave as soon as the debale on that matte
has finished. Speakers can, of course, stay for the whole of the remaining
public meeting if they wish.

Last updated 05.09.24 Page 34



Cambridge City Council Constibution:
Parl 4B — Access to Information Procedure Rules Page J82

Nhe Fublic Participation Scheme is intended for Cambridge citizens and
bNgsiness people and not specifically employees in relation fo issues digfctly
affacting their employment by the Council. For further advice on this fontact

the rlevant commitlee manager responsible for the meeting you arg
intereNed in.

Last updated 05.09.24

Page 35



Cambridge City Council Constitution:
5 Part 54 — Code of Conduct for Councillors Page 351

9. Where hospitality is made available to a group of councillors as part of
an event or visit in which the Council is participating, the Democratic
Services Manager may make a block entry in the Register for members
affected and will tell the members in question that he has done so.

ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY

10.  You should be very cautious about accepting gifts and hospitality which
you think may have been offered because you are a councillor.
Generally, anything other than modest promotional gifts (diaries,
calendars etc) or modest hospitality (eg light refreshments at a
meeting) should be refused. Especial care should be taken where
someone has, or may in the future have, dealings with the Council.

11, If refusal of a gift might cause embarrassment, an appropriate

alternative to refusal might be to donate the gift to the Mayor's Charity
Fund for raffle or auction.

FURTHER GUIDANCE

If you need further guidance at any time about the Register or about whether
to accept gifts of hospitality, please contact the Head of Legal Practice or the
Head of Committee Services.

= PART #Pfamng-Code-of-Goed-Rraetice

— (Forreview 2017)

Page 36



Cambridge City Council Constitution:
FPart 54 — Code of Conduct for Councillars Page 37

1. Introduction

2. Relgtionship to the Members’ Code of Condug

3. Develohment Proposals and Interests ungfr the
MemberX Code

4. Open and FaX Decision Making

5. Contact with App\jcants, Develgfers and Objectors

6. Site Visits

A

7. Public Speaking at Meejfigs

8. The role of Officers

9. Decision Making

10. Developmepf Control Forums

11. Training

1. Intr6duction

1.1 This Code offers guidance to Councillors about good pracie in the
glanning process. It supplements the Council's Code of ConNuct for
Members and aims to ensure that the Council makes and is sken to
make planning decisions properly, openly, impartially, and for justifagble
reasons.

2  This Code applies to Members involved in the planning process. It

applies to formal decision-making and to less formal occasions, such as
development control forum meetings, meetings with officers or the public

Page 37




Cambridge City Council Constitution:
Fart 54 — Code of Conduct for Councillors Page 353

1.3

2.

and consultative meetings, planning enforcement matters or sffe-specific
policy issues as well as to the consideration of planning apgfications.

\he purpose of the planning system is to considef development
pN\eposals in the public interest. To be successful the flanning system
religs on Councillors and officers acting in a way thaY/is fair and clearly
seer\lo be fair and even handed. Councillors have g/special duty to their
constiNents but a wider duty to the community of Yie City of Cambridge.
Where Nanning matters are concerned the integésts of the wider public
have lo IN considered as well as the Development Plan and all other
relevant ma{erial considerations.

Relationship to the Membgrs’ Code of

Conduct

2.1

2.2

3.

This Code is intendkd to supplemént the adopted Member Code of
Conduct. It is unlikely\that there Aill be any conflict between the two
codes but, if there is, \be proylsions of the general Code will take
precedence.

It is very important that Megers are careful to apply both the general
Code of Conduct and this LodX in dealing with planning issues. Failure
to do this may place the Louncil\gt risk of legal challenge or a finding of
maladministration and jor individu Members the potential for complaint
about them to the Mgfitoring Office

Development Proposals\and Interests under

the Members’'Aode

31

IF ¥OU HAVE A CODE OF CONDUCT INTERECST IN ANY MATTER,
YOU MYST DISCLOSE THE EXISTENCE AND\NATURE OF YOUR
INTEREST AT ANY RELEVANT MEETING, INCANUDING INFORMAL
MEEJINGS OR DISCUSSIONS WITH OFFICERS AND OTHER
MEMBERS. IT IS BEST TO DISCLOSE YOUR INNSREST AT THE
BYGINNING OF THE MEETING AND NOT JNST AT THE
ZOMMENCEMENT OF DISCUSSION ON THAT RARTICULAR

ATTER. THE MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT SETX OUT THE
CIRCUMSTANCES WHICH GIVE RISE TO A DISOOSABLE
PECUNIARY INTEREST OR A PERSONAL INTEREST.

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, or a personal and prejNdicial
interest, you may not participate in making the decision, either forrzally
or informally. You should also aveid giving any impression \of
participation, as it is important to maintain public confidence in the
impartiality of councillors in decision-making. (A personal interest is

Page 38




Cambridge Cily Council Constitulion:
FPart 54 — Code of Conduct for Councillors Page

3.3

4.

41

classed as “prejudicial” if it is “one which a member of the pulflic with
knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regapl as so
gignificant that it is likely to prejudice the Member's judgegfent of the
pN\blic interest.”)

Theg are other things you should avoid if you havf a disclosable
pecun\gry interest or a personal and prejudicial intergét. These include
the folloing:

You try % avoid representing ward or local views on a matter in which
you haveguch an interest. In these circumstgihces it is appropriate to
ask anothe\ward councillor to take on this fole;

You should aviyid getting involved in the frocessing of the application
by using your pgsition as a councillgf to get access to officers or

papers;

You should not lobb) other mergbers of the Council, including the
circulation of letters oNemails, 4r by raising the matter in group or
similar meetings;

You may address the meeyNg that considers the application or other
matter in the same way that Nembers of the public may address the
meeting. However yoy/ shouly then withdraw from the meeting
(formal or informal) al/which the\natter is under consideration. You
may nol sit in at the/meeling, eveg as a member of the public and
you may not vote. fhis is the positidg even if you are not a member
of the committee Avhich is making theJecision;

If you are sybmitting your own plannig application, or have a
disclosable glecuniary interest or a persoril and prejudicial interest
in a planniffg application, you should be paNcularly careful to avoid
any imprgssion of either seeking or receiving \pecial treatment. You
should Also make sure that the Head of PlanniNg Services is aware
of the /nterest. You may wish to consider emplowng an agent to act
on your behalf in dealing with officers and/oN addressing the
coimittee. However, as mentioned above, you myy exercise the
sgme speaking rights as are afforded to members\of the public,
provided that you then withdraw from the meeting whe\ the item is
considered.

Open and Fair decision making

Cambridge City Council Planning Commitlee takes decisions o
planning matters openly and in public. For a decision to be open and fair:

Page 39




Cambridge Cily Council Constitution:
Fart 54 — Code of Conduct for Councillors Page 3

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

* Those taking the decision should not be biased or havé pre-
determined how they will decide;
Those taking the decision should not have a prejudicial intefest in the
oubcome;

. e decision should be consistent with others takgh previously
ur¥gss there are good reasons to decide otherwise; g/id

* The\easons for the decisions should be clearly set gut

Avoiding B\as or Pre-determination

It is entirely peXmissible for Committee Members ftho are democratically
accountable defjsion makers, to be pre-dispoged towards a particular
outcome. Nonethgless they must address the planning issues before
them fairly and on Weir merits. That means ey can have a view on the
application but mus\not make up their ghind on how to vole before
formally considering the application and gfy representations. Committee
Members must have an\gpen mind on Jhe merits of a proposal before it
is formally considered at INe committeg meeting. They must be prepared
to be persuaded by a differagt view igf the light of any detailed arguments
or representations concernini the garticular matter under consideration.

If the committee's decision on g/glanning application is challenged in the
High Court by way of judicial/reNew on the grounds that some of the
committee members werf biasgd, or had pre-determined the
application, the court will #ssess the\case on the basis of what a fair-
minded observer, knowing the relevan\facts would think.

Section 25 of the Locgflsm Act 2011 came \gto effect on January 15 2012
and provides that a/ecision maker is not W be taken to have had, or
appeared to have/fhad, a closed mind wher\making the decision just
because;

(a) The decisjpn maker had previously done anwhing that directly or
indirectly/indicated what view the decision makXr took, or would or
might tgke in relation to a matter; and

(b) The matter was relevant to the decision.

The pbsition remains the same that Councillors shold approach
planfling applications with an open mind and are able to weigh all the
argiments right up to the point at which a decision is made. \he safest

durse is lo avoid statements as lo support or opposition\ for an
fpplication (that may leave the impression that minds have beef\made
up). If a Member has made such a statement they must be satisfied\lhey
can still consider the application with an open mind and be prepareX to
take into account any matters in favour or against the proposad
development until the decision is made.

Care should be taken with the following, where you are likely to be a
decision-maker:

Page 40




Cambridge Cily Council Constitution:
Part 5A — Code of Conduct for Councillors Page 354

4.7

5.

+ Making statements in advance of the meeting that you have piade up
your mind how you are going to vole;

+ \Taking up a campaigning role for or against an applicat/on;

« AnNng as an advocate for groups opposed to of/supporting the
appN\cation;

lssues aroNnd bias and predetermination are difficufl and getting it wrong
can lead to Yegal challenge andior reference to Jhe Local Government
Ombudsman.\Cach case needs to be considergd on its facts and if you
are in any doubNyou should seek advice from tife Head of Legal Practice.

Contact witN Applicants, Developers and

Objectors

51

5.2

5.3

It is important to recognisi that lobbyhg is a normal and perfectly proper
part of the political procesa\and is/mportant to local democracy; those
who may be affected by a pl§nniglg decision will often seek to influence
it through an approach to theirg/ected ward member or a member of the
Planning Committee. Howevef\unless care is taken, lobbying can lead
to the impartiality of a megfnbe\ being called intoe question and to
difficulties for the member garticipa\ng in the decision.

When being lobbied, rfembers shouN] have regard to the advice in
Section 4 about the dgfigers of appearing to approach a decision with a
“closed mind”. Howéver, unless you hXve a disclosable pecuniary
interest or a persopfl and prejudicial intere}, you can:

Listen to/receive/ viewpoints from residents or &ther interested parties

Make comménts and express views to residenly, interested parties,
other memjfers or appropriate officers

Give ngfi-technical advice on planning procedures, incidding suggesting
to thogee who are lobbying, that they should speak or writeNo the relevant
officgr, in order that their opinions can be included in the &fficers report
to Zommittee

Seek information through appropriate channels

Alert the decision-making committee to issues and concerns that Rave
been drawn to your attention.

If you are approached by applicants or others seeking planning,
procedural or technical advice, they should be referred to officers.

Page 41



Cambridge City Council Constitution:
Part 54 — Code of Conduct for Councillors Page 357

54

5.5

56

5.7

5.8

59

6.1

If you are invited to, or asked to arrange, a formal meeting/ with
ypplicants, developers or groups of objectors (for instance, refidents’
azsociations) or supporters, you should inform the case officgf dealing
witN the application. It is generally better to put formal meetjfigs on an
officiyl basis, with Planning Department support and a note/aken of the
meeting. This applies to all stages of the planning process/including the
pre-appNgation stage.

If you receélye any approaches which raise new isglies or bring new
information 1 light, you should let the case officer bfiow what these are
as soon as poMgible. If a developer offers any plaghing gain or offers to
accept any condNtions on development in returnfor consent, be sure to
let the case officeNknow as soon as possible.

If any approach by a\developer or anyone #se gives you cause to feel
uneasy, please approaxh the Head of Legél Practice.

In addition, if you condder any isfue or fact to be a relevant
consideration, and other mgmbers may not be aware of it, be sure to
raise it when the applicatioN is cghsidered. You should not rely on
information which is not in the Zubfic arena in reaching a decision.

In personal dealings with applicAnty, objectors ete, you should be mindful
of the need to avoid giving # firm Xommitment to supportioppose the
application if you are to partjfipate in ke decision. Bear in mind that your
overriding duty is to the wjfole commuNty not just to the people in your
ward, that planning decigfons need to be \gken on planning grounds and
that you should avoig/the appearance W improperly favouring any
person, company, grolp or locality

You should not aglept gifts or hospitality from\developers or from any
person involved/in or affected by a planning pNoposal including pre-
application proglosals. If acceptance of some hospNality is unavoidable,
it should be kgpt to a minimum and should be decladhed and recorded in
the Councifs hospitality register. The Council's Mlicy is that all
hospitality feyond the insignificant (lea and biscuits or skpilar) should be
entered j the register. If significant hospitality is offered, you should
seek agice from the Head of Legal Practice before accepNng.

bite Visits

Individual Planning Committee members may wish to visit a site d

which they have been asked to determine an application. If you decide
to visit a site, you should aveid putting yourself in a position where you
could be accused of partiality by any interested party to the application.

Page 42



Cambridge Cily Council Constifution:
Part 54 — Code of Conduct for Councillors Page A58

6.3

6.4

6.5

71

7.2

7.3

74

It is best to visit a site unaccompanied by the applicant or by offjectors.
However, if a site visit is caried out in the presence of the/applicant
And/or their agent, or of residents/objectors, you should beay/in mind the
adyice given in paragraphs 4.2 and 4.3 of this Code. You/Ahould avoid
being put under undue pressure from any interested party to visit a site.

You shiuld not enter onto private land or premises witjfout first obtaining
the perfNssion of the owner. Where possible, ygu should seek to
familiariseN\gourself with the site from a public viewpint. If you go onto a
site, you shixuld only do so if satisfied that it is gyite safe to do so0. You
should not, foNinstance, enter a site where excayations or building works
are in progres) unless guided by a respongfole site manager. If you
anticipate a need\to ask to enter onto land, you should attempt to make
arrangements in avance and should carry (and produce) your Council
identity card.

You should ensure thaNany informatigh which you gained from the site
visit is reported back to Yoe Commifes, so that all Members have the
same information.

Formal Committee sile visilg/may be arranged at the request of
members, but this is likely lo b&\practical only where there is a clear and
substantial benefit. When thgfy ockur a record will be kept of why the visit
is being held and who atfended.\ An officer, who will point out any
relevant factors and issugh concerniNg the site and its surroundings, will
accompany committee phembers. A sNe visit is not a meeting to discuss
the planning merits of fhe scheme or toYpake decisions.

Public Speaking at Meeting

You should noy allow members of the public Iy communicate with you
during the Cgmmittee's proceedings (orally or\n writing) other than
through the fcheme for public speaking, as this may give an appearance
of bias or gpecial access to councillors.

All plaphing matters will be considered in public sessign, unless there
are specific reasons for dealing with an item as confideNtial under the
proyfsions of the Local Government Act, 1972, in which cage the public
wi)f be asked to leave the room.

Applicants, agents and members of the public who have mads written
representations on an application will be allowed lo speak at PINnning
Committee meetings, but only in accordance with the agreed Coyncil
procedures.

¥YOU SHOULD AVOID OVERFAMILIARITY WITH APPLICANTS,
OBJECTORS AND OTHER MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHEN

Page 43




Cambridge City Council Constitution:
Part 3A — Code of Conduct for Councillors Page 344

8.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

9.2

ATTENDING  MEETINGS, AS  THIS S5 OPEN/ TO
MISINTERPRETATION.

e role of Officers

PlanzNng officers must act in accordance with the Cofncil's Code of
Condu¥ for Officers and their professional codes of gbnduct; primarily
the Roya| Town Planning Institute's Code of Professjonal Conduct. The
views, op\gions and recommendations of plannifig officers may on
occasion diNer from the views, opinions or decisjfns of the Committee
or its Membes. Officers are there to give prgfessional and impartial
advice, to makk, sure that members have all e information they need
for decision maNng. They are there to adyfse on the context of the
planning applicatiyn in terms of the devefopment plan and all other
relevant material plgnning considerationg. Officers will give a clear,
accurate wrilten analsis of the issuef and a recommendation with
reasons for the decision\they are suggefting. Officers are there to advise
(other than where the dedsion has bgn delegated to them) and to camry
out the decisions of the plagning cg/mittee.

It is critical to the openness Nng transparency of the planning service
that mutual trust between mephbers and their officers is demonstrated
and that there is clear underglandng of and respect for the other's role.

All members should pay garticular Mtention to the professional advice
and recommendations figm officers. Ph\anning decisions are not an exact
science so interpretatighs may vary from\time to time. You are not bound
to follow officers’ advife or recommendatids, but you should only depart
from advice or recofimendations where yoN have good reason to do so,
based on clear and legitimate planning grodgds. These will need to be
voted on and regfrded. The Council has adoptad an ‘Adjourned Decision
Protocol (ADE) procedure that will apply in \gjor application cases
where a decifion contrary to the advice of officers\s being considered.

Decisjon Making

If you Ask for a proposal to go before the Planning CommiNge rather than
be dftermined through officer delegation, make sure that'\our reasons
aref/recorded and repeated in the report to the Committdg and that
erever possible you attend the meeting to speak to the item\Any such
equest must state the planning grounds on which it is based.

You should demonstrate through your conduct at the meeting tha\ you
are giving careful, fair and balanced consideration to the issues urjer
discussion. It is particularly important that applicants and members f
the public have confidence in the way in which decisions are reached)
The conduct of members can be important in ensuring that faith in the
planning process is maintained.

age =+



Cambridge City Council Constifution:
Part 54 — Code of Conduct for Councillors Page AGD

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

10.

10.1

11.

11,

You should keep in mind your obligation to make degsions in
accordance with the Development Plan unless material copfSiderations
inNjcate otherwise, as required by section 38(c) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The Chuncil's own proposals for development musl/be dealt with on
exaclly e same basis as applications submitted jfy members of the
public. YoN should be particularly careful to ensure/that any decision on
a Council\ application is based purely oA relevant planning
considerationyg.

You should make a decision only after ygfi have considered all the
relevant informatioy needed to make a decjfion. If you feel you have had
insufficient time to\digest new informajfon or that you need further
information, you shoNd say so and, if fecessary, ask for a deferral or
abstain.

You should not vote or ke paif in the meeting's discussion on a
proposal unless you have\beer/ present to hear the entire debate,
including the officers’ introducyjgh to the matter.

If you are expressing a view/Lonlary to officer recommendations or the
development plan, you spould iagntify clearly the planning reasons
leading you to take a diff¢frent view.\{he use of the Adjourned Decision
Protocol will be consideyed in appropiNle cases.

Developmernf Control Foryms

The provisions ¢ this Code apply equally Iy member participation in
Development (fontrol Forums. In particular:

You should Aeclare any disclosable pecuniary or personal interest;

You should not participale in a Development Contro\Forum if you have
a disclogable pecuniary or personal and prejudicial inbgrest;

Membef decisions are not made at Development ConYol Forums and
you #hould be careful to avoid giving the impressior\that you are
appfoaching the merits of the application with a closed miny.

raining and Development

Planning decisions are often complex and differ in nature from sowe of
the other decisions taken by the Council. It is crucial that planNng
decisions are based on legitimate planning grounds and thal appropriaNe
weight is given to possibly competing factors. The Council offers training
and development to councillors on planning law and procedure and
Members who sit on regulatory committees will need to have had at least

Page 45




Cambridge Cily Council Constilution:
Part 54 — Code of Conduct for Councillors Page 36

11.2

minimum planning familiarisation training before they attend theff first
eeting.

Pdst hoc review of new development by the Planning’ or Joint
Dewlopment Control Committees will be arranged on a Ji-annual or
more\frequent basis to aid ongoing development of Members and
officers\ Bite sized updates and briefing sessions will e provided on
committeg days along with thematic training sessions gn specific topics
each muniipal year.

APPENDIX TO\PLANNING CODE @F GOOD
PRACTICE

MEMBER GUIDANCE W§N REQUESTS /TO REFER PLANNING
APPLICATIONS TO COMMITNEE

1.

The scheme of delegationNor plannigfg, allows any Member of the City
Council and any County Member rfpresenting a City Ward 1o request

that an application be refymed to the Planning Committee for
determination, provided the reQyest is made within the timescales set
out, that it is in writing, and tha¥ iNstates the planning grounds on which

the request is made. Late reguestd\ should be avoided.

Members are advised to gheck the prygress of the application with the
case officer before makigfg a request arN also to inspect the application
file. This may avoid thff need for a referra).

It is important that fhe planning grounds fox referral are stated in the
written request. /An information leaflet enf\led ‘How to Comment’
explains what faglors can typically be considereN in assessing planning
applications, d¢pending on the circumstances ofYhe case. This leaflet
is sent out with neighbour notification letters. PMNnning grounds can
include: whegther the development accords with planmog policy; whether
the develgbment is appropriate for the area; whether\he development
would cgfise harm to neighbouring amenity; whether the\groposal would
cause Jfaffic congestion or be a danger to highway sakety. Loss of
propefty value, loss of trade to businesses and moral objecNons are not
planfiing grounds. The case officer can give further advice ifequired.

embers may feel that a particular planning application raises phanning
ssues of the kind described above that ought to be discusseN and
determined at Commitlee, rather than being determined under deleg\led
powers. However, in deciding whether lo make such a reguest, if\s
important that Members consider their role and responsibility in tha
decision making process.

0
Q
Q
@
5
op



Cambridge City Council Constitution:
Part 54 — Code of Conduct for Councillars Page 36

On receipt of a written request by a Member for an application 6 be
determined by Committee, the case officer will acknowledge the rfquest
in writing or by telephone. The case officer will also check Jith the
Member that it is necessary for the application to be detephined by
Committee, rather than under delegated powers. Thegé may be
Narticular circumstances, depending upon the officer recgfmmendation
wiere a committee decision is not necessary; this shoulg/be discussed
witfNhe planning case officer.

T. Membexs' representations are summarised in the offjer report.

8. It is not apygropriate for a Member to request that Lommittee
determines {n application if they have a disclosgble pecuniary or
personal and \prejudicial’ interest in it under thf Council's Member
Code of conduly.

Page 47



Joint
Development
Management
(Cambridge
Fringes)

SECTION T: WORKING GROUPS

SECTION 9: Scheme of delegation to Council Officers
1. Definitions and consultation with councillors under this scheme.
SRR
4. General Delegations ... TE
4.1 Financial Matters. ...
4.2 Staffing Matters ..o
4.3 Froperty Matters. ..
4.4 Legal matters .. ...
4.5 Other general delegations ...
5. Delegations to specific officers........cco e
52 Scheme of Delegations ...

BT BB OULIVE oottt ettt et et s s s s

FEgEe I¥

6.4 Housing Scrutiny Commiies ...
6.5 Other Scrutiny Committees ..o

71 Infroduction ..
7.2 Joint Staff Emplnyer Fr::nrum

2 Urgency Action... .
3 Proper Gf‘flcer.anrmal matters

Group delegations ...

Specific delegations: Executive Functions..
Specific Delegations: Regulatory FUNGHONS oo

53 Democracy, Inclusive Economy and Climate Group ...
Assistant Chief Executive ...

Group delegations ... .
5.4 Corporate Gruup

Chief Operating OffICer.....ooe e
Group Delegations: Executive Functions ...
Chief Finance OffICEr. ...,
Service area delegations by the Executive ...
Specific Delegations: Executive Functions ...
Head of Human Resources/Head of People.. ... ..
585 CoOmMMUNIHES GIOUD e

Communities Director...

Group delegations by the E::En:utn.re ................................................

Specific Delegations: Executive Functions ..

Specific Delegations: Executive and F!:egulat{:ry Functmns
Housing and Homeless Assistant Director/Head of Huusmg ............

Group Delegations: Executive Functions ...
58 City SEMVICES GIOUD oot ees e nmenneaas
ity SEIVICEE DB O oot s e e
Group Delegations: Executive Functions ...,

Updated 06.12.23

Page 48

63
4

.......... 65
B .
T3 Equalities Fanel ...
SECTION 8: JOINT COMMITTEES AND OTHER PARTNERSHIF BODIESG63
8.1 [t o (0 T Lo O O PO SOP P

a6 Cambridge City Joint Area Committee- disbanded by County
Council 317 20

%]
%]

__________ L]

.......... 69

i)

TG

.......... 7

SEENRE

__________ 86

e BT



Page vi

29. Points of order..........cooiii . 133
30. Respect ferehalr cevenenn 133
31. Motions eﬁeetlng persc-ns empleyed h}f the Ceunml v 133
32. Mode of voting... et 133
33. Minutes... . PP RROT I - |
34 Exclusion Of Public .. .. SRR I 1+
35 Disorderly Conduct: Mlseenduet Cﬂfﬁu Member vovmnrinnnnn 136
36 Disorderly Conduct: Disturbance by members ef the pUb|IE...... 136
37 Suspension And Amendment Of Council Procedure Rules.......136
38 Appointment of committees............. ceveneennns 137
39 Attendance at committees by members of the Council ............. 137
40 Attendance of Mayor at Civic Affairs Committee .. ceeeeeeen 138
41 Standing committees.. . 133
42 Appointment of Chairs and Vice-Chair ... v 138
43 Special meetings of committees... 138
44 Appointment of sub-committees.. i 138
45 Quorum of committees and sub- committees.. e 139
46 Voting in commitiees and sub-committees.. creveeseiiaeeeaaea. 139
47 Attendances of members to be recorded in minutes .. ceeenne 139
48 Circulation of reports of the Executive and cemmlﬂees . 139
50 Paragraphs to be numbered.............. cevneernannennnees 140
51 General Instructions to HEQU|E’EDF5|’ Committees.. cevveerinannens 140
52 Council Conventions .. - 14{)
Appendix A: Scheme For Annuel Stetements 147
Appendix AZ - Council Procedure Rules — Eudget Recommendations and
Amendments ... 143
Appendix B1: Petitions oot 148
E-petitions ... caens e 1B

154

deppaRdiiBd-Ravalopenbanliolhonins
Appendix D: Oral Question Time For Councillors At Council Meetings .... 156
Appendix E: Guidance for councillors using electronic mail in connection with

council meetings ........... .158
Appendix F: Conventions For The Conduct Of Council Business .. .. 160
B. Agenda planning and preparation and pre-decision hrlefngefmember
access to information .. 160
Cc Consultation 1.-|r|th members befere exermsmg delegated pewers163
D Changes to committee membership.............oocooieene, .164
E Honorary MEH‘IhEFShIp‘]Eﬂ-

PART 4B: ACCESS TO MEETINGS AND INFORMATION PROCEDURE
1: Seepe .. SO PPPTPPPOPPR I & 15
2: Addltlenel rlghts te mfermetlen OO PP ORRRION I -+
3: Rights to record meetings ... 163
4: Rights to speak at meetlngs SOOI OOOTRUOUTOPRO | 1.
5: How the Council gives notice ef meetlngs .. 168
B: Access to agenda, reports and haekgmund papers I:refcrre deelsmns
. 169
7: Aeeess te mlnutes reeerds Df demelene reperts end beekgreund
papers after deciSions........c.coociviii .. 169

Updated 061223

Page 49



L a T L = [ B LT F 3 1 =11 L ST

Page xii

327

CONErACt REEISTET oo e e e s mm s samsssae s aeeeees DR
Grant 328
Specification .. v 328
Standard Term:-'. and Cundltmns ..328

B = [ |
TUPE

PART 4H: CODE FOR THE DISPOSAL OF LAND ..

328

...328

...330

1 Categories Of Land To Which This Cnde Ftelates cerinnnnnn 330
2 Authorising Disposals.... 33{)
3 Preconditions To Dispc-sal 330
! FProcedure For Securing Dl“fers . e 331
5 Procedure For Receipt And Acceptance Of Offers.. ..332
PART 4I: OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES.................. 346

Part 5A: Cambridge City Council’s Code Of Conduct For Members

{Councillors)

RT 4: Planning Code of Good Practice

Page 50



Fage xiii

1. INTRODUCTION ... N\ ceeeininniinnniiniingfiiiiiii e 302
2. RELATIONSHIP TO THEWNEMBERS/CODE OF CONDUCT .......... 353

3. DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALIMND INTERESTS UNDER THE
MEMBERS' CODE ......ccocooiice ANt 303

4. OPEN AND FAIR DECISIZN MAKINGS . ..., 354
5. CONTACT WITH APRLICANTS, DEVELORERS AND OBJECTORS356
7. PUBLIC SPEAKING AT MEETINGS........ccociiiiiiea NG, 308
8. THE RQLE OF OFFICERS ........coccciiiiiiniiiiiiiicncee\pesien . 3089
9. DEZISION MAKING.......cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiniciiicesccie e N e . 308
10. /DEVELOPMENT CONTROL FORUMS ...\ 360
1. TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT ...ociiiiiiiiiiiinii i S0U
APPENDIX TO PLANNING CODE OF GOOD PRACTICE .........cceoieiene. 361

PARTSB: OFFICER CODE OF CONDUCT ..o, 363
What does the Council expect from you? ... 363
Council money and equipment.............o e 364
Conduct outside Work ... s S04
Having another job ... 504
Accepling Qifls ... e SOG
Being politically neutral.............oooocoi .. 305
Conflicts of interest..........o . 366

Updated 08.12.23

Page 51



Page 52



GREATER CAMBRIDGE
SHARED PLANNING

Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service Officer Scheme of Delegation in

respect of planning and related functions December 2024

This Scheme of Delegation relates to all those matters delegated to the Joint Director
of Planning and Economic Development by Part 3 and Part 4 of South Cambridgeshire
District Council Constitution dated 8 March 2024 (as amended) and Para 5.7 of
Section 9 of Part 3 of Cambridge City Council Constitution dated 06 December 2023
(as amended)

Delegated authority given by South Cambridgeshire District Council and
Cambridge City Council Planning Committees to the Joint Director of Planning

and Economic Development.

Defined terms

“Application” means any application received by the Council under the Town and
Country Planning Act (1990) as amended, The Listed Building and Conservation
Areas Act (1990) as amended including any application for the making of a tree
preservation order, application for the approval or the modification, variation,
revocation of an existing tree preservation order, including any application to
undertake any tree works to trees whether or not the trees are within a conservation
area, or any other legislation affording the Council a right to exercise its duties and

functions as set out under Schedule B.

Page 53



“Council” means either South Cambridgeshire District Council or Cambridge City
Council as the context requires, and “Council” and “Councils” shall be construed

accordingly.

“Delegation Panel” means the panel comprising of the Joint Director of Planning and
Economic Development in consultation with the Chair and / or Vice Chair of the
relevant Council’s Planning Committee, set up specifically for the purposes of deciding
whether a Planning Application is to be determined by the relevant Planning

Committee.

Any member in relation to an application within their ward is permitted to make a
written representation to the Delegation Panel concerning whether the application

should be heard by Planning Committee.

Upon request and with the Chair or Vice Chair's agreement, any member (or a member
on their behalf) in relation to an application within their ward can attend the Delegation

Panel to explain the reasoning for calling-in a proposal.

“Director” means the Joint Director of Planning and Economic Development, or such
other Director as shall perform the functions of the Joint Director of Planning and

Economic Development.
“*JDMC” means the Joint Development Management Committee

“JDMC ToR” means the JDMC terms of reference dated July 2020 as amended from
time to time (Appendix 1).

“Major Development” means any Application which falls within the definition of major
development as set out in the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure (England) Order 2015) (As amended) involving any one or more of the

following:

(a) the winning and working of minerals or the use of land for mineral-working deposits;

(b) waste development;

Page 54



(c) the provision of dwellinghouses where:
(i) the number of dwellinghouses to be provided is 10 or more; or
(ii) the development is to be carried out on a site having an area of 0.5 hectares
or more and it is not known whether the development falls within sub-paragraph
(©)();
(d) the provision of a building or buildings where the GIA floor space to be created by
the development is 1,000 square metres or more; or
(e) development carried out on a site having an area of 1 hectare or more;

“Minor Development” means any Application which falls outside of the definition of

Major Development.

“Planning Committee” means the Planning Committee of either South
Cambridgeshire District Council or Cambridge City Council or the Joint Development

Management Committee as the case may be.

“Representation” means a written communication(s) received by the Council from a
Third-party in response to a public consultation to an Application and which raises
material planning considerations. Multiple written communications from a Third-party
are to be construed as a singular Representation relative to any referral to the

Delegation Panel unless made in the form of a petition.
“Scheme” means this Scheme of Officer Delegation.

“Third-party” means anyone who has made a Representation who is not the

applicant or their representative, a parish council or statutory consultee.
Scheme of Delegation
The schedules referred to in this Scheme are Part 3 Table 3 (Responsibility for Council

functions (Committee) (As amended) of the South Cambridgeshire District Council’s

constitution and Part 3, 5.5 (As amended) of the Cambridge City Council’s constitution.

Page 55



Scheme of Officer Delegation in relation to South Cambridgeshire District

Council and Cambridge City Council Planning Committees

The Scheme of Delegation: the Planning Committee delegates authority to the
Director to exercise at their discretion, the duties, functions and responsibilities of the
Council in relation to paragraphs 1-15 below. The Director may authorise any other
Officers within the Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service to exercise these
powers on their behalf. Any Officer so authorised by the Director may in turn delegate

further. Such delegations must be evidenced in writing:

1. The identification and Designation of Local Heritage Assets

2. The investigation and determination of responses in accordance with the
Local land Charges Act 1975 (as amended)

3. The implementation and operation of provisions under Part VIII of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990

4. The investigation and discharge of all enforcement functions and
capabilities contained within the Town and Country Planning Act,
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act and The
Hedgerows Regulations 1997 Act and The Hedgerows Regulations
1997.

5. The discharge of functions of Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976, Section 16.

6. The determination of complaints received pursuant to Part 8 of the Anti-
social Behaviour Act 2003.

7. The determination of applications for the registration of land or
buildings as Assets of Community Value.

8. To determine, make a decision, respond, investigate, or notify on
behalf of the Council in the exercise of its responsibilities, duties and
functions any Application as set out in Schedule A, and made in
relation to any of the Acts (as amended) as set out in Schedule B,
subject to any Application made under paragraphs 11 — 15 always
being required to be reported to Planning Committee.

9. To determine, make a decision, respond, investigate, or notify on

behalf of the Council in the exercise of its responsibilities, duties and

Page 56



10.1.

10.2

10.3

functions any Application not set out in Schedule A, and made in
relation to any of the Acts (as amended) as set out in Schedule B,
except in any of the circumstances set out in paragraphs 10.1 - 15
below:

Where a Ward Member or Parish / Town Council writes, or emails, a request
for a particular Application® to be considered by Planning Committee, sound
material planning reasons are given for why this is considered necessary, and
the request is accepted by the Joint Director of Planning and Economic
Development at Delegation Panel, after consultation with the Chair and / or Vice
Chair of Planning Committee subject to: the request having been made within
twenty-one days of the date of validation of the Application, or within fourteen
days of receipt by the relevant Council of any subsequent significant
amendment to the Application. Any call-in request must be accompanied by a
written statement giving the relevant material planning considerations and why
in the opinion of the Parish/ Town Council or Ward Member it is appropriate for

the Application to be determined by the Planning Committee; or

Where five or more Third-party Representations on material planning grounds
to an Application® (that cannot be resolved by way of a condition(s)) are
received and following consideration by the Joint Director of Planning and
Economic Development at Delegation Panel, having consulted with the Chair
and / or Vice Chair of Planning Committee, the Application is decided to be
referred to Planning Committee for its determination, subject to: the Third-party
Representations having been made within twenty-one days of the date of
validation of the Application, or within fourteen days of receipt by the relevant

Council of any subsequent significant amendment to the Application; or

Where five or more Third-party Representations on material grounds (that
cannot be resolved by way of a condition(s)) to an Application related to the
making of a tree preservation order are received which are contrary to the
officer recommendation, subject to: the Third-party Representations having

been made within twenty-one days of the date of validation of the Application,

Page 57



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

or within fourteen days of receipt by the Council of any subsequent significant

amendment to the Application; or

Where the Officer recommendation is one of approval, but the Application
represents a significant departure from the adopted development plan.
Significant departures shall include, but are not limited to, development which

requires referral to the Secretary of State; or

Where the applicant is an elected Member or an Officer of the relevant Council,
or close relative or family member of either of such persons or where an

Application is made on their behalf; or

Where an Application is for the substantial demolition of either a listed building
(within the meaning of the Town & Country Planning Act (Listed Buildings &

Conservation Areas Act 1990) or a building of local interest; or

Where a Regulation 3 Application is made pursuant to the Town and Country
Planning General Regulations 1992 (as amended from time to time or

replaced); or

Where an Application is one which in the opinion of Officers’ should be
determined by the Planning Committee because of special planning policy
considerations or the complexity of the application or it is of significant and / or

of strategic importance.

1. Excluding Applications for Tree Preservation Orders or Tree Works

Note:

For the purposes of considering circumstances described in paras.10.1 and 10.2, the

Director in consultation with the Chair and / or Vice Chair of Planning Committee, shall

have regard to the following criteria:

1. Relevant material planning considerations raising significant planning concerns.

Page 58



2. Significant implications for adopted policy.

3. The nature, scale and complexity of the proposed development.
4. Planning history.

5. Degree of public involvement.

Scheme of Officer delegation in relation to the JDMC

The following powers are delegated to the Director in respect of planning and
development management matters. The Director may authorise any other Officers
within the Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service to exercise these powers on
their behalf. Any Officer so authorised by the Director may in turn delegate further.
Such delegations must be evidenced in writing:

A. To determine and make decisions in connection with the Applications (as set out
in the attached Schedule A submitted under the legislation specified in Schedule
B) and which falls wholly or substantially within the areas identified within the
terms of reference of JDMC as included in Appendix 1 except in any of the

following circumstances:
1. where the Application is in respect of:

1.1. the provision of residential units where the number to be provided is one

hundred or more;

1.2. the provision of a non-residential building or buildings where the GIA floor
space to be created by the Application is 1,000m? or more or is for non-
residential development to be carried out on a site that is of one hectare or

more; or

2. the Application includes the provision of primary roads, open space or other site-

wide infrastructure that fulfils a strategic purpose; or

3. a Regulation 3 Application made pursuant to the Town and Country Planning

General Regulations 1992 (as amended from time to time or replaced); or

Page 59



where the Officer recommendation is one of approval, but the Application
represents a significant departure from the adopted development plan.
Significant departures shall include, but are not limited to, development which

requires referral to the Secretary of State; or

where the applicant is an elected Member or an Officer of the relevant Council,
or close relative or family member of either of such persons or where an

Application is made on their behalf; or

the Application is one which in the opinion of Officers should be determined by
JDMC because of special planning policy considerations or the complexity of the

application or it is significant and / or of strategic importance; or

Where a Ward Member or Parish / Town Council writes, or emails, a request for
a particular Application? to be considered by Planning Committee, sound material
planning reasons are given for why this is considered necessary, and the request
is accepted by the Joint Director of Planning and Economic Development at
Delegation Panel, after consultation with the Chair and / or Vice Chair of Planning
Committee subject to: the request having been made within twenty-one days of
the date of validation of the Application, or within fourteen days of receipt by the
relevant Council of any subsequent significant amendment to the Application.
Any call-in request must be accompanied by a written statement giving the
relevant material planning considerations and why in the opinion of the Parish/
Town Council or Ward Member it is appropriate for the Application to be

determined by the Planning Committee; or

Where five or more Third-party Representations on material planning grounds
to an Application® (that cannot be resolved by way of a condition(s)) are
received and following consideration by the Joint Director of Planning and
Economic Development at Delegation Panel, having consulted with the Chair
and / or Vice Chair of Planning Committee, the Application is decided to be
referred to Planning Committee for its determination, subject to: the Third-party

Representations having been made within twenty-one days of the date of

Page 60



validation of the Application, or within fourteen days of receipt by the relevant

Council of any subsequent significant amendment to the Application.

1: Excluding Applications for Tree Preservation Orders or Tree Works

Note:

For the purposes of considering circumstances described in paras 7 and 8 the Director

in consultation with the Chair and / or Vice Chair of the Planning Committee shall have

regard to the following criteria:

1. Relevant material planning considerations raising significant planning concerns.

2. Significant implications for adopted policy.

3. The nature, scale and complexity of the proposed development.

4. Planning history.

5. Degree of public involvement.

Schedule A: Applications delegated to the Director (not subject to consideration

for Committee)

a)

b)

any Application for prior approval, telecommunications, advertisement consent,
lawful development certificates, householder development, discharge of
conditions, S96 non-material amendment, permission in principle, tree works,
or S19 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

to determine the reasons for which any Application would have been refused
where this is relevant to appeals against non-determination and, on a without
prejudice basis, to suggest appropriate conditions and approve / comment on
the terms of Section 106 agreements or Unilateral Undertakings.

negotiating and settling (i) the terms of any planning obligations and/or the
discharge of planning obligation/s pursuant to sections 106 and 106A of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) in accordance with the
terms of any resolution or decision to grant planning approval by the relevant
Planning Committee: and (ii) the authority to enter into any planning obligation

for the purposes of acting as the enforcement authority for any planning

Page 61



d)

e)
f)
9)

h)
)
)

obligation imposed on the other Council in the circumstances where it has a
legal estate in the Application site.

screening and scoping opinions pursuant to the Town and Country Planning
(Environmental Impact Assessment) (England and Wales) Regulations 2011
(as amended from time to time or replaced)

to carry out and adopt Appropriate Assessment under the Habitats Regulations.
negotiating and completing applications for planning performance agreements.
any operational matters and decisions, including its enforcement, relating to
the implementation of a Community Infrastructure Levy.

consent for drainage works.

prior notifications and approvals under a Development Order

goods vehicles operating licences

Schedule B: The following legislation as amended from time to time or any

replacement legislation:

Local Government Act 1972.

e Local land Charges Act 1975

e Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

e Town and Country Planning Act 1990

e Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation areas) Act 1990

e Planning and Compensation Act 1991
e Transport and Works Act 1992

e Environment Act 1995 (including Hedgerow Regulations 1997)

e Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003

e Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
¢ Planning Act 2008

e Localism Act 2011

e Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013

e [nfrastructure Act 2015

¢ Housing and Planning Act 2016
e Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017
e Levelling up and Regeneration Act 2023

Page 62



e The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations
2019

e Any new legislation that is relevant to the Councils’ Planning functions.

Appendices

The Terms of reference for the Joint Development Management Committee (JDMC),

Standing Orders and plans are in Appendix 1.
Development Control Forum details are in Appendix 2

The Cost Sharing Protocols for JDMC are in Appendix 3

Page 63



Appendix 1 — Terms of reference for the Joint Development Management

Committee

1. Parties:
Cambridge City Council
South Cambridgeshire District Council

(‘the Councils’)

2. Status:
The Joint Development Management Committee (‘the Committee’) is a joint
committee formed by resolutions of the Councils pursuant to section 101(5),
Local Government Act, 1972.

3. Membership:
6 Members appointed by Cambridge City Council
6 Members appointed by South Cambridgeshire District Council

4. Terms of reference:
4.1. The Committee’s remit is to discharge the functions (‘the functions’) set out in
Annex 1, the exercise of which have been delegated to the Committee by the

parties, subject to the limitation in paragraph 4.2.

4.2. The Committee shall discharge the functions in respect of Major
Developments and related matters pursuant to such applications on land that
is positively identified in the adopted Local Plans of the two Councils for any
purpose and which falls wholly or substantially within the area as shown

edged in [blue] on the plans forming Annex 3.

4.3. The Committee may exercise the subsidiary powers authorised pursuant to
section 111, Local Government Act 1972 in connection with the discharge of

the functions.

4.4. The Committee may exercise the powers of delegation contained in sections
101(2), 101(5) and 102 Local Government Act 1972.

Page 64



5. Standing Orders

5.1. The Committee shall be governed by the Standing Orders set out in Annex 2,

as amended from time to time.

6. Administration

6.1. The Party which is the local planning authority shall receive applications in

the usual way and shall be responsible for all consequential administration.

6.2. Cambridge City Council’s staff shall be responsible for all matters connected

with the administration of the Committee, including the preparation and
dispatch of agendas and securing premises at which the committee may
meet or providing facilities to enable remote meetings to take place. Decision
notices shall be signed by the Joint Director of Planning.

6.3. Costs shall be shared in accordance with the Cost Sharing Protocol set out in

Notes:

Appendix 3 to the Standing Orders.

1) A major development is defined by reference to Article 1 of the Town and Country

Planning (General Development Procedure) Order 1995 or as subsequently

amended or replaced and means development including any one or more of the

following:

a)
b)
c)

d)

the mining and working of minerals

waste development;

the provision of dwelling-houses where

i) the number of dwelling-houses to be provided is 10 or more; or

i) the development is to be carried out on a site having an area of 0.5
hectares or more and it is not known whether the development falls within
paragraph (c)(i);

the provision of a building or buildings where the GIA floor space to be

created by the development is 1,000m? square metres or more; or

Page 65



e) development carried out on a site having an area of 1 hectare or more

Annex 1 — Functions of the Committee

1. The exercise of each of the Councils’ powers and duties in relation to Part Il
(Control Over Development) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended and Chapter Il and VI (as appropriate) of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 in respect of “Major
Development” and related applications for approval of details and S106
requests to that permission plus associated Reserved Matters applications
including but not limited to:

i)  the determination of planning applications by virtue of Regulation 3 of

the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992.

i) the power to approve authorise and direct the respective Councils to
negotiate and enter into agreements regulating the development or use

of land pursuant to S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. The review, change, amendment or modification of the scheme of delegation

to Officers.

3. The review, change, amendment or modification of the Standing Orders of the

Committee.

4. Any matter related to an application previously determined by the Joint
Development Control Committee for Cambridge Fringes and which would

continue to form a part of this Committees functions.

5. Such other functions as may be delegated to the Committee by the Councils

from time to time.

Annex 2 - JDMC Standing Orders

Joint Development Management Committee Standing Orders
Approved on 21 October 2020.

Page 66



1. Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair
1.1. The Committee shall, at its first meeting, and as a minimum annually
thereatfter, elect a Chair and Vice-Chair. The Chair and Vice Chair shall
be drawn alternately from each of the two Councils comprising the

Committee.

1.2. In the absence from any meeting of the Chair and Vice-Chair, a Chair for
that meeting shall be appointed by the meeting, but shall relinquish the

chair if the Chair or Vice Chair subsequently arrives at the meeting.

2. Notice of and Summons to Meetings
2.1 The Administrator will give notice to the public of the time and place of
any meeting in accordance with the access to information rules
applicable to local authorities. At least five clear days before a meeting,
the Administrator will send an agenda by post and/or electronically to
every member of the Committee. The agenda will give the date, time and
place of each meeting and specify the business to be transacted, and

will be accompanied by such details as are available.

2.2. The Administrator will take reasonable steps to ensure that a copy of the
agenda and accompanying papers are placed on deposit at the offices of
each of the councils for public inspection at least five clear days before
the meeting. The Administrator will ensure that arrangements are put in
place for the inspection of background papers in accordance with section
100D, Local Government Act, 1972 and to ensure compliance with all

other provisions of Part VA, of that Act.

2.3. Dates, times and venues for meetings shall be determined by the
committee. In the absence of agreement or in cases of urgency,
meetings may be called by the Administrator following consultation with

the Chair and Vice Chair.

3. Membership

Page 67



3.1. Committee members shall be appointed by the councils from time to time
in accordance with the terms of reference. A council may at any time
replace one or more of its nominated members by notice given to the

Administrator.

4. Alternate Members
4.1. Each council will, by resolution, appoint two alternate members in
respect of each political group which represents their council on the
committee, but shall not appoint an alternate member for a political
group which declines to nominate an alternate member. Each council will

notify the Administrator of alternate members appointed.

4.2. Alternate members will have all the powers and duties of any ordinary
member of the committee. For the purposes of briefing meetings and
circulation of papers, alternate members shall be treated in the same

manner as ordinary members.

4.3. Alternate members may attend meetings in that capacity only to take the
place of a member of the same political group who is an ordinary
member of the relevant committee or sub-committee. The alternate
member should withdraw from participation as a member of that
committee or sub-committee in the business at that meeting during any

period during which the principal member is in fact in attendance.

5. Quorum
5.1. The quorum of a meeting will be six with no less than: -
3 Member from South Cambridgeshire District Council and
3 Member from Cambridge City Council

6. Public speaking rights
6.1. Members of the public have the public speaking rights set out in The
Public Speaking Rights at Planning Committee.

7. Voting

Page 68



7.1

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

8.1.

9.1.

Minutes

Every question shall be decided by a show of hands or by way of a roll
call when the meeting is taking place using arrangements for virtual

committee meetings, and subject to Rule 7.2

If any member demands a vote by roll-call and is supported by two other
members, the question shall be determined by a vote by roll-call and the
Administrator shall record and enter in the minutes the names of each
member present and whether they voted for or against or abstained.

Any member may, immediately after any vote is taken, require a record
to be made in the minutes of whether they voted for or against or

abstained.

If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chair will have a

second or casting vote.

The Chair will sign the minutes of the committee at the next suitable
meeting. The Chair will move that the minutes of the previous meeting

be signed as a correct record.

Exclusion of Public

Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in
accordance with the Access to Information provisions of the Local
Government Act 1972 (consideration of ‘exempt information’) or Rule 12
(Disturbance by Public).

10.Disorderly Conduct: Misconduct of A Member

10.1.

If at any meeting of the committee any member, in the opinion of the
Chair, misconducts him/herself by persistently disregarding the ruling of
the chair, or by behaving irregularly, improperly or offensively, or by
wilfully obstructing the business of the committee, the Chair or any other
member may move "That the member named be not further heard", and

the motion if seconded shall be put and determined without discussion.

Page 69



10.2.

10.3.

If the member named continues his/her misconduct after a motion under
the foregoing Rule has been carried, the Chair shall either move "that
the member named must leave the meeting" (in which case the motion
shall be put and determined without seconding or discussion); or adjourn
the meeting of the Council or committee for such period as s/he is in

his/her discretion shall consider expedient.

In the event of a general disturbance which in the opinion of the Chair
renders the due and orderly despatch of business impossible, the Chair,
in addition to any other power vested in him/her, may adjourn the
meeting of the committee for such period as s/he is in his/her discretion

shall consider expedient.

11.Disorderly Conduct: Disturbance by members of the public

11.1.

11.2.

If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings at any meeting the
Chair shall warn him/her. If s/he continues the interruption the Chair shall

order his/her removal from the meeting.

In case of a general disturbance in any part of the Room open to the

public the Chair shall order that part to be cleared.

12.Suspension of Standing Orders

12.1.

Any of these Standing Orders may, so far as is lawful, be suspended by
motion passed unanimously by those entitled to vote on the application
in question. Any motion to suspend any part of these rules shall specify
the purpose of their suspension. Any suspension shall only be to the
extent and for the length of time necessary to achieve the stated

purpose.

13.Attendance at the Committee by other members of the Councils and County

Council

13.1.

A member of Cambridge City Council, South Cambridgeshire District

Council or Cambridgeshire County Council who is not a member of the

Page 70



committee or a member of a parish council (in respect of applications
relating to sites in their own parish) may speak at a meeting of the
committee at the request or with the permission of that committee or of
its Chair made or obtained before the meeting. Such request or
permission shall specify the matters in respect of which the member

shall be permitted to speak;

[Explanatory note: There might be circumstances in which the Committee may wish
to permit a city, district or county councillor to speak on applications even if the
application does not relate to her/his ward or division. For instance an executive

councillor with relevant strategic responsibility may want to address the committee.]

14.Development Control Forums
14.1. The Committee will operate a scheme for development control forums in

accordance with Appendix 2.

15.Statements of Community Involvement
15.1.  Public consultation in relation to pre application matters shall be dealt
with in accordance with the SCI or other appropriate procedures of the
Council responsible for issuing the consent.

Page 71



Annex 3 - JIDMC plans

Page 72



Appendix 2 — Development Control Forum

Development Control Forums are triggered by receipt of a qualifying petition
Receipt of Petitions and Notification of Development Control Forum

1. Neighbour consultation letters on planning applications within the remit of the
committee shall include information about the scheme for development control

forums and the relevant consultation period.

2. A Petition should be sent to the Administrator and should identify the matter to

which it relates and the grounds of concern.

3. The Administrator will:
(a) Liaise with the Planning case officer to obtain the following information:

« The expiry date of the relevant consultation period;

e The addresses of the applicant and agent.

(b) Check whether the petition meets the criteria established in the scheme —
ie.:

e It contains at least 25 signatures of residents and/or business owners in
the County;

e Itincludes the addresses of those who have signed it;

« It has been received within 7 working days following the end of the
relevant consultation period (in the case of petitions of objection) and no
later than 6 working days before a Forum meeting (in the case of petitions
of support);

« The application is not: a householder application; an application for a
certificate of lawful use; or an application for advertisement consent.

[Note:
0] If any of these criteria are not met, the petitioners should be informed in
writing that their petition will be reported to the committee, and that a

Development Control Forum will not be held.

Page 73



(ii)

(iif)

Normally, a Forum will not be convened in the case of petitions relating to
amendments to applications, or to applications which have already been
the subject of a Forum. However, the Administrator, following consultation
with the Chair and Vice Chair, is authorised to decide whether significant

new issues are raised, making a Forum appropriate.

A Forum will not be held to hear a petition of support alone, except where
an application, which has not already been subject to a Forum meeting, is

resubmitted following an earlier refusal of planning permission.

(iv) Petitions may be submitted by email subject to the following:

(©)

(d)

An e-mail petition must consist of individual e-mails, showing the sender’s
e-mail address.

An e-mail petition must include the sender’s postal address.

The e-mails must be addressed to the organiser (rather than a council or
the committee or its members) who must then let the [administrator to be
appointed] have print-outs of the requisite number of supporting e-mails.
[Random checks will be carried out on petitioners that have used the e-

mail procedure.]

Liaise with the Planning case officer and Chair and spokespersons about
the date of the Development Control Forum and fix a date, time and venue.
So far as practical at least 10 days (including weekends) notice should be
given to all those attending under (d). For the avoidance of doubt dates for
possible Development Control Forum meetings may be programmed in

advance of receipt of petitions.

Send written invitations to:
The lead petitioners;

The applicants and agents;
Committee members;
Ward councillors;

Planning officers;

Page 74



The press will also be informed.

The invitations to the meeting should include:

e A short summary of the application details (to be provided by the planning
case officer);

e The case officer as a contact point for planning enquiries and the
Administrator for queries about the petition process;

« An explanation of the fact that up to three representatives of the petitioners
and up to three representatives of the applicants may attend and speak;

« Petitioners to be invited to contact the officers for a briefing on the

procedures at the Forum.
(e) Inform all other councillors of both councils that the meeting is taking place.

4. If two or more petitions are received relating to the same planning application, the
following procedure should be applied:
¢ In the case of two or more petitions opposed to the application, or two or
more petitions in support of the application, the petitioners will be
encouraged to make a joint presentation. If agreement on this is not
possible between the petitioners, they would share the time allocations

given in paragraph 9.

Development Control Forum Meetings

5. The Press and Public are entitled to attend meetings as observers.

6. The Development Control Advisor or other A senior planning officer (other than
one of the case officers involved in dealing with the application) will chair the

meeting.
7. The style of the Forum will be informal, but the authority of the Chair must be

recognised. The decision of the Chair on any question of procedure will be final.

No votes will be taken.

Page 75



8. The main purpose of Forum meetings is to enable petitioners and applicants to
give their views and to provide the means by which consensus can be built

between the parties.
9. The format of the Forum will be as follows for each application:

Presentation of the application by the applicant/agent (up to three
representatives) - up to 20 minutes;
o Presentation of the views of the petitioners against the application (up to
three representatives) - up to 20 minutes;
« Presentation of the views of the petitioners in support of the application
(where applicable) (up to three representatives) - up to 20 minutes;
o Presentation by the case officer - up to 10 minutes;
« Member questions and issues arising - up to 30 minutes;
e Summing up by the applicants/agents - up to 5 minutes;
e Summing up by the petitioners against the application - up to 5 minutes;
e Summing up by the petitioners in support of the application - upto 5
minutes;

¢ Final comments of the Chair.

After the Meeting of the Forum
10.The Administrator will take minutes of the meeting. The minutes will be a
summary of the issues raised and should not be taken to express a view or
decision which is in any way binding on the committee. The minutes will be
circulated in draft to the Chair of the Forum, the Chair and Vice Chair of the
committee and the case officer and finalised within 5 working days of the Forum.
Copies of the finalised minutes will be sent, for information, to:
e The petitioners’ representatives at the meeting;
e The applicants’ representatives at the meeting;
e Ward councillors;
« Committee members

« the Parish Councils of the areas to which the application relates.

Page 76



The minutes, and the text of the petition, will also be appended to the report to

the committee which invites it to determine the application.

11.The case officer should contact the applicants/agent after the meeting to discuss
whether a meeting would be helpful to discuss the issues raised at the Forum
and to discuss any changes that may be necessary to the application. The
applicant will be encouraged to keep in direct contact with the petitioners and to
seek their views on any amendment/s.

12.The case officer will inform the petitioners’ representatives of any amendments to
the application. Normally, no further Development Control Forum will be held if
the planning application is amended - see paragraph 3 (b) (ii).

13.The petitioners’ representatives will be informed of the date of the meeting at
which the application is to be considered by the committee and will be sent
copies of the committee report. The petitioners and applicants will be asked to
send any further comments they may have on the report to the planning case
officer as soon as possible, so that they can be circulated in good time to

members of the committee.

Page 77



Appendix 3 — Cost Sharing Protocols for JDMC

The ongoing costs incurred in relation to the administration of the Committee, legal
support and planning service costs shall be borne by the administering authority and
recharged in accordance with the shared service agreement between the two
Councils.

Exceptional costs that arise in relation to, for example, appeals and legal
proceedings will be borne:

i) from the joint planning budget,

i) ii) where there are insufficient funds within the joint planning budget, then
the costs shall be shared proportionally by the Councils.

Page 78



e

S Vi

D
&5

S
VAG:

Plantation |

Prolspect

ongfield
Farm

Farm

International
Airport”

\\Teversham Fen
3

\(
ROHAM-GP

eversham _
.

City Ward and South
| Cambridgeshire DC ]
Parish Boundaries 2
. i
City and South x\
| € =Y cambridgeshire DC B
Boundary =
— T A A
B 9 seerns b e D A I e e : NN I
= (c) Crown copyright and database right 2024 Ordnance Survey Licence No:1 '
Bl I s TR T L R —

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



L. e N
\| Cambridge West and North West

SO ST
2| './..' \//\Q ‘{‘
y \ |

LB
S 4
W s
N

0

SN T -
o

D

| , o ST {(‘ \ ‘
' ol G @‘:&\\3}; 3 :’;
s A5l .‘%cﬁ:‘m .

EEA’.?//, ‘Ii?i;',EEbnEl!!:iin
el

~| [ 1ocC Area

City Ward and South

el s = B S | ] Cambridgeshire DC

il

o6 A < B : S ‘.' :
o B o o o E ) ! L) i - Y (=

e XYL AN SN B . Parish Boundaries
- ‘ City and South

“ :: J Cambridgeshire DC

e

bl |
Cotory Countryside
R~ (o0 / ‘Reserve‘:

} TR -

L N ] - . — 4.
0 | & #500 1,000 1,500+
H = e e— ° MeLteSZ‘:=1‘ T e
3 = ~ . P A== il
[ (c) Crown copyright and database right 2024 OrdnLance Survey Licence No100022500. - \ 8 ag . "SHARED PLANNING
\ B ) ) CP ok o - .

AN % B £ | . By, g ([T !“l‘;b-"'r'.. | e o=t 101 _aP

(s
‘
B

IS~ GREATER CAMBRIDGE




This page is intentionally left blank



T . O\
Cambridm Fringe.

e

et

=

] 1pCc Area
City Ward and South
: Cambridgeshire DC
Parish Boundaries
N
- City and South )
:_ : Cambridgeshire DC
Boundary
0 200 400 600 N

Metres @
BN
(c) Crown copyright and database right 2024. Ordnance Survey Licence No..100022500. /& SHARED PLANNING
I 1) /AN AN

NGE [

GREATER CAMBRIDGE
E

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



eyl
= Bkt

NN oS T

ulbourn Road Area

3§
L
/

- 4 n
e
I".\
e

==

[J bcc Area |

City Ward and South

[ ] Cambridgeshire DC
Parish Boundaries

_ . City and South
.,'-_ J Cambridgeshire DC
Boundary
[
0 200 400 600 — Al |
WSS GREATER CAMBRIDGE

SHARED PLANNING
m

(c) Crown copyright and database right 2024. Ordnance Survey Licence No. 100022%00.
I

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



g //
North East Cambridge

1 Ik

City Werd and South
[ Cambridgehie X
Parih Boundaries

. City and South
, f,,', Cambridgeshire DC
Boundary

&
|
|
!

=

S S .

e e

o1 copyriht and daabese i ‘ LAY ey SHARED PLANNING {
KA AR N PG
R\ NN N Rl | YW




This page is intentionally left blank



P
E. =1

CAMBRIDGE
CITY COUNCIL

Public Speaking at Planning Committees:

Cambridge City Council Planning Committee
South Cambridgeshire District Council Planning Committee

Joint Development Management Committee

Page 89



Members of the public are welcome to attend the Planning and Joint Development
Management Committee meetings, this guide sets out how we allow the public to
speak at Committee — including who can speak, how to register, the length of speaking

time and policy on presentation of material.

1. What is the Planning Committee
Planning Committee and the Joint Development Management Committee (JDMC) are
Regulatory Committees consisting of elected Councillors who are responsible for
determining planning applications which cannot be dealt with under delegated powers

to officers.

2. When and where do Planning Committee meetings take place?

« City Planning Committee usually takes place from 10am the first Wednesday
of the month at The Guildhall, Market Square, Cambridge, CB2 3QJ.

e South Cambridgeshire District Council Planning Committee usually takes place
from 10am the second Wednesday of the month at South Cambs Hall,
Cambourne Business Park, Cambourne, Cambridge, CB23 6EA.

« JDMC takes place at either the Guildhall or South Cambridgeshire District
Council offices, usually the third Wednesday of the month from 10am.

o Alternative venues may be used; details will be set out on the agenda and

meeting webpage.

3. Can anyone attend Planning Committee meetings?

e Meetings of the Planning Committee are open to the public, so anyone can
attend and listen to the meetings.

« Despite being a public meeting, in some very occasional cases, the law does
allow the committee to consider some matters in private. For example, an
application may contain information of a personal or commercially sensitive
nature that the Council would not be able to publicise. In every case, however,
the public interest in excluding the press and public from the meeting room must

outweigh the public interest in having the information disclosed.

Page 90



. Can anyone speak at Planning Committee meetings

The Planning Committee welcomes public participation at the meeting;
examples of those who may wish to speak at the meeting include applicants or
an applicant’s agent, neighbours or other residents, community groups, Parish
Council representatives® (where applicable) and Councillors?.

Speakers may speak in support or objection to an application.

You must register at least two working days before the meeting (more

information on registering to speak is set out below)

. How do I register to speak at Planning Committee?

Public speaking requests must be registered with the relevant Democratic
Services Team by no later than 12noon 2 working days before the meeting (i.e.
the Monday before the Wednesday).

City Planning Committee: Democratic.Services@cambridge.gov.uk

South Cambridgeshire District Council:

Democratic.Services@scambs.gov.uk

JDMC: Democratic.Services@cambridge.gov.uk

Requests received after this time will not be allowed.

Registration by email preferred.

Speaking requests should include your name, email address, telephone
number, the application you wish to speak to as well as the capacity in which
you are attending.

Speakers are encouraged to submit a written copy of their planned speech by
12 noon two working days before the meeting, to be used as a backup in case

the speaker is unable to attend due to unforeseen circumstances.

. How can | attend the meeting?
Public speakers can attend the meeting in-person, or virtually via Microsoft

Teams.

1 Representatives of a Parish Council must have the formal agreement of the Parish Council to
represent their views
2 Councillors will need to advise in what capacity they are speaking i.e. Ward Councillor etc

Page 91


mailto:Democratic.Services@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic.Services@scambs.gov.uk
mailto:Democratic.Services@cambridge.gov.uk

The relevant Democratic Services Team will provide further guidance for
attending each venue.

There is no need to have made a previous written comment on the planning
application to register to speak at committee.

The agenda for the meeting is set at the time of publication. It is not possible to
guarantee when an item will be determined. Public speakers should be
prepared to address the Committee at any time after the beginning of the

meeting.

. How should | plan what to say at the meeting?
Each category of public speaking (see paragraph 11 below) is limited to 3
minutes.
If more than one person registers to speak per category, the speaking time may
be split between the different speakers, or a spokesperson could be
appointed.
The Chair of the meeting has discretion to extend the 3-minute time period for
all speaking categories should the application require it. This will be set at the
chairs briefing for that committee, however, it can be reviewed at the committee.
Committee members will have read the planning officer written reports, so try
to avoid repeating points that are already explained in that material. Focus your
speech on material planning grounds, these can include (but are not limited
to):

o Overlooking/loss of privacy

o Loss of light or overshadowing

o Parking

o Highway safety
o Traffic

o Noise

o Effect on listed building and conservation area
o Layout and density of building

o Design, appearance and materials

o Government policy

o Disabled persons' access

o Proposals in the Development Plan

Page 92



o Previous planning decisions (including appeal decisions)

o Nature conservation
Practice in advance of the meeting to ensure you can deliver your speech within
the 3 minutes.
Speakers should be careful not to say anything derogatory or inflammatory,
which could expose them to the risk of legal action.
The Chair will say when the speaking time is almost finished to allow time to
round up.
Speakers will be stopped once the speaking time has finished.
Speakers cannot question Councillors, officers or other speakers and must limit

their comments to planning related issues.

. Guidance about written statements

If you are not able to attend the committee meeting and wish to submit a written
statement, it must be emailed to the relevant Democratic Services Team by 12
noon 2 working days before the meeting.

A written statement should be no longer than one side of A4 in size 12 font.
Any inappropriate statements will not be accepted.

Written statements will not be read out at the meeting but will be published on
the meeting webpage.

Written statements will not be accepted after the deadline.

. Guidance about virtual attendance

The Council will endeavour to facilitate online attendance at meetings via the
Microsoft Teams platform. However please note the council will take no
responsibility for any individual who is unable connect into the meeting.
Meetings will proceed in-person in the event of any technical difficulties

The Democratic Services Teams are unable to provide ICT support for virtual

attendance at meetings.

10.Can | submit images to be displayed when I’'m speaking

Yes, but images must be submitted to the relevant Democratic Services Team
by 12 noon, two working days before the meeting.

Any inappropriate images will not be accepted

Page 93



o The images will need to be verified by the planning officer in advance of the
meeting and an officer will display them while you are speaking.

« Images will be uploaded onto the online planning register.

11.What are the categories for public speaking?

o Petitioner (if applicable)

e Speakers in objection

e Speakers in support — including the applicant / agent / supporters
o Parish Council (if applicable)

e Councillors — more than one councillor can speak on an item

12.How are applications considered?

e A planning officer will introduce the item.

e Public speakers will be invited to speak.

« The Planning Committee will discuss/ debate the application.

« The Planning Committee will take a vote on either the officer recommendation
in the agenda or a proposal made by a Planning Committee member.

e Should the Committee propose to follow a course of action different to officer

recommendation, Councillors must give sound planning reasons for doing so.

13.Chair’s discretion to manage the meeting
This document lays out the standard public speaking procedures at a Planning
Committee or JDMC meeting. The Chair can vary from these procedures at their

discretion to accommodate extenuating circumstances.

Page 94



1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

Introduction

This document offers guidance to Councillors about good practice in the planning process.
It supplements the Cambridge City and South Cambridge District Councils’ Code of Conduct
for Members and aims to ensure that the Councils make and are seen to make planning
decisions on proper planning grounds (set out in Appendix 1) and that the Councils make
(and are seen to make) decisions properly, openly, impartially, and for justifiable reasons.

This guidance applies to all Members (not just planning committee members) at all times
when involved in the planning process, not just at Planning Committee. It applies to formal
decision-making and to less formal occasions, such as informal pre application advice, ,
meetings with officers or the public and consultative meetings, planning compliance
matters or site-specific policy issues as well as to the consideration of planning
applications. It also applies to all, and any, forms of communication and interaction
including online or telephone discussions or meetings, emails, electronic and social media
communications, posts, statements and comments.

The purpose of the planning system is to consider development proposals in the public
interest. To be successful, the planning system relies on Councillors and officers acting in
a way that is fair and clearly seen to be fair and even handed. Councillors have a special
duty to their constituents but a wider duty to the communities of Cambridge and South
Cambridgeshire. Where planning matters are concerned the interests of the wider public
have to be considered as well as the Development Plan and all other relevant material
considerations.

Relationship to the Members’ Code of Conduct

This guidance is intended to supplement the two adopted Member Codes of Conduct. It is
unlikely that there will be any conflict between the codes but, if there is, the provisions of
the general Code will take precedence. An extract from the Code of Conduct relating to
General Conduct is set out below:

You must:

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 95



3.1 provide leadership to the authority and communities within its area, by personal example and
3.2 respect others and not bully or threaten or attempt to bully or threaten any person
3.3 respect the confidentiality of information which you receive as a Member by-

3.3.1 not disclesing confidential information to third parties unless required by law to do so or where
there is a clear and over-riding public interest in doing so; and

3.3.2 not obstructing third parties’ legal rights of access to information

3.4 not conduct yourself in a manner which is likely to bring the Authority into disrepute

3.5 use your position as a Member in the public interest and not for personal advantage

3.6 comply with the Authority’s reasonable rules on the use of public resources for private and political
pUrposes

3.7 exercise your own independent judgement, taking decisions for good and substantial reasons by -

3.7.1 attaching appropriate weight to all relevant considerations including, where appropriate, public
opinion and the views of political groups

3.7.2 paying due regard to the advice of Officers, and in particular to the advice of the statutory officers,
namely the Head of Paid Service, the Chief Finance Officer and the Monitoring Officer and

3.7.3 stating the reasons for your decisions where those reasons are not otherwise apparent

3.8 do nothing that causes the Authority to act unlawfully.

extract from South Cambridgeshire District Council Councillor Code of Conduct

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 96



2.2

3.1 You must treat others with respect.

3.2  You must not—
(a) do anything which may cause your authority to breach its public
sector equality duty as defined in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
or its obligations under the Human Rights Act, 2000.
(b) bully any person;

(c) intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to
be—

(i) a complainant,
(i) a witness, or

(iii) involved in the administration of any investigation or
proceedings,

in relation to an allegation that a member (including yourself) has failed
to comply with his or her authority's code of conduct; or

(d) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, your authority.

Extract from Cambridge City Council councillors code of conduct

It is very important that Members are careful to apply both the general Codes of Conduct
and this guidance in dealing with planning issues. Failure to do this may place the Council
at risk of legal challenge or a finding of maladministration and for individual Members the
potential for complaint about them to the Monitoring Officer.

Development Proposals and Interests under the Members’ Planning Code

General points to consider and beware of

3.1

3.2

If you are a member of planning committee you must avoid representing your ward or any
local views on a planning matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. You
can discuss your views with another local ward member but lobbying should be avoided
(see 4.12, 4.13) In these circumstances it is appropriate to ask another ward member to
take on this role of representing the ward for you .

You must not use your position as a Member to obtain access to planning officers or
planning application papers that you submit either as a Member or an agent of an
applicant.

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 97



3.3

You should not lobby other Members of the Council on a planning matter, including the
circulation of letters or emails, or by raising the matter in Member group meetings or any
other meetings of the Council.

Pecuniary and any other Interests

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Members and Officers are required to declare any disclosable interests that they hold.
Declaration is usually given upon their election or appointment to office; Members are
under a duty to maintain that declaration and amend, as necessary within twenty-eight
days of becoming aware of any such changes throughout their term of office.

A register of Members’ interests will be maintained by the Council’s Monitoring Officer of
each Council’s Democratic Services Team and is available for public inspection.

Members and Planning Officers are also under a duty to declare interests as and when
matters arise or prior to Planning Committee. Guidance on any issue may be sought from
the Council’s Monitoring Officer or the Legal Adviser to the Committee. The decision as to
whether an interest ought to be declared rests with the individual Member or Officer
involved. The interest should be declared at the start of the meeting under the agenda item
“Declarations of Interest” rather than the start of the relevant item.

There are three types of interest, ‘personal’ ‘prejudicial’ and pecuniary. A Member will
have a personal interest in a Planning Committee decision if the matter relates to an
interest in respect of which the Member has given notice in the statutory register of
Member’s interests; or the decision might reasonably be regarded as affecting their
financial position or that of a relative, spouse, civil partner. employer or friend. Where a
Member considers he or she has a personal interest in a matter, they must always declare
it.

A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest if a member of the public (with
knowledge of the relevant facts) would reasonably conclude that the Member’s interest is
significant and as such that it is likely to prejudice the Member’s ability to objectively and
impartially consider the application and to take part in the decision making process for that
particular application.

Where any Member of the Committee is unsure as to whether they have a prejudicial
interest they should discuss their concerns with the Monitoring Officer or the Legal Adviser
who to the Committee without delay and where possible in advance of the Committee.
The decision to take part in the Committee’s determination of the application is a matter
for the individual Member’s judgement. However, Members are strongly advised to refrain
from any participation at any stage in the consideration and determination of the planning
application particularly if they have been so advised by either the Monitoring Officer or the
Legal Adviser to the Committee. This course of action is intended to reduce the risk of a
challenge of the Committee’s decision.

Pecuniary Interests

3.10

Pecuniary interests are defined in regulations. Interests which fall into this category are
those which include but are not limited to business, employment, trade, profession,
contract and wider financial interests, assets such as land, payments, securities, and
shares. All Planning Committee Members are encouraged to seek advice from the

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 98



Monitoring Officer or the Legal Adviser to the Committee where they have any concerns
as to whether a pecuniary interest exists.

3.11 Any Planning Committee Member with a pecuniary interest must, following declaration of
the interest at the committee meeting immediately recuse themself from the meeting and
take no further part in the discussion on the application. Members can remain in the
Chamber should they wish to do so but must sit in the public gallery until the item has been
determined.

3.12 As a member (and not just a member of planning committee) there are things you should
avoid if you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. These include the following:

= You should avoid representing ward or local views on a matter in which you have such
an interest. In these circumstances it is appropriate to ask another ward councillor to
take on this role;

= You should avoid getting involved in the processing of the application by using your
position as a councillor to get access to officers or papers;

= You should not lobby other members of the Council, including the circulation of letters
or emails, or by raising the matter in group or similar meetings;

= You may address the meeting that considers the application or other matter in the
same way that members of the public may address the meeting. However you should
then withdraw from the meeting (formal or informal) at which the matter is under
consideration, you can remain in the meeting room, and if you do you should sit in the
“public gallery”. ;

= To reiterate the advice in 3.1 above, if you are a member of planning committee you
must avoid representing your ward or any local views on a planning matter in which
you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. You can discuss your views with another
local ward member but lobbying should be avoided (see 4.12, 4.13) In these
circumstances it is appropriate to ask another ward member to take on this role of
representing the ward for you .

= |f you are submitting your own planning application, or have a disclosable pecuniary
interest in a planning application, you should be particularly careful to avoid any
impression of either seeking or receiving special treatment. You should also make sure
that the relevant Delivery Manager is aware of the interest. You may wish to consider
employing an agent to act on your behalf in dealing with officers and/or addressing the
committee. However, as mentioned above, you may exercise the same speaking rights
as are afforded to members of the public at the planning committee meeting where
you application is to be determined, provided that you then withdraw from the
meeting when the item is considered and remain (as a member of the public would)
within the public gallery.

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 99



4.1

Open and Fair decision making

Planning Committee takes decisions on planning matters openly and in public. For a

decision to be open and fair:

= Those taking the decision should not be biased or have pre-determined how they will
decide;

= Those taking the decision should not have a prejudicial interest in the outcome;

= The decision should be consistent with others taken previously unless there are good
reasons to decide otherwise; and

= The reasons for the decisions should be clearly set out, based on proper planning
grounds and in accordance with the development plan.

Predetermination, Predisposition or Bias

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

In addition to declaring personal or prejudicial interests, Members of a Planning
Committee must avoid any appearance of bias or of having predetermined their view
before taking a decision on a planning application.

Predetermination goes beyond predisposition by failing to weigh up and balance all the
relevant factors and taking into account other viewpoints which are reached as a result of
the Committee’s determination process and importantly includes the Officer’s report, the
Officer recommendation and presentation and any public participation. Section 25 (2) of
the Localism Act 2011 introduced provisions for dealing with allegations of bias or pre-
determination. Under the provisions of the Act, a Member is not to be taken to have had,
or appeared to have had a closed mind when making the decision just because
(a) the decision maker had previously done anything that directly or indirectly
indicated what view the decision maker took, or would or might take, in relation
to a matter
(b) the matter was relevant to the decision.

It is permissible for a Member to be predisposed towards a particular outcome. There is
however a distinction between being predisposed and predetermined and it is this
distinction which Members need to be aware of throughout the decision making process.
It follows, the fact that a Member may have campaigned for or against a proposal does not
automatically mean that they have a closed mind, but Members must be extremely careful
to ensure that it is clear that they have considered, all relevant information and made their
decision in accordance with the principles of openness, transparency and their statutory
duty.

Members should be prepared to change their view right up to the point of voting on the
application having listened to the application in full.

Members can absent themselves from an application where they wish to represent the
views of their constituents as a Ward Councillor and in these circumstances they should
take no part in the determination of the application.

Predisposition

4.7

A distinction is drawn by the Courts between a Member having clearly expressed an
intention to vote in a particular way before a Committee meeting (pre-determination) and
a predisposition on the application having formed a preliminary view where that view has

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 100



been reached without full knowledge of all the relevant information. Where a Member is
clear that they have an open mind and are willing to listen to all the information presented
to the Planning Committee before deciding on how to exercise their vote, there will be no
predetermination.

Predetermination

4.8

4.9

Bias
4.10

4.11

If a Member of the Planning Committee has formed a view-before the Committee sits, they
should consider whether the view they have formed could be regarded as being
predetermined. In other words, whether they have already made up their mind (to vote in
a particular way) and are unprepared to fully consider the information presented to the
Planning Committee before deciding on how to exercise their vote.

If a Member of the Planning Committee has predetermined their position they must not
take part in the decision making for that application for to do so represents a breach of the
Member Code of Conduct and leave the decision open to legal challenge by way of Judicial
Review.

Bias is defined as the inclination to favour or disfavour certain people or things especially
a personal prejudice.

The test for establishing whether a Member has shown bias is: “would the fair-minded
observer, knowing the background, consider that there was a real possibility of bias?” It is
not the Member’s view of whether they are biased but the view of the independent
observer. Perception is important and can lead to judicial challenge in the High Court i.e.,
Judicial Review proceedings. If a Member believes that their participation would lead a
fair-minded observer to consider there is a real possibility of bias, they should not
participate in the decision making process and should withdraw from involvement in the
application’s determination. The Courts have held it is primarily a matter for the Member
to judge on whether to withdraw but given the scope for challenge the Member should
always err on the side of caution or if in doubt seek guidance from the Monitoring Officer
or the Legal Adviser to the Committee.

Lobbying

4.12

4.13

Concerns on poor practices within local authorities have often been based on the issue of
lobbying. Lobbying can lead to the impartiality and integrity of a Member being called into
guestion, unless care and common sense is exercised. When being lobbied Members
should be mindful about expressing an opinion that may be taken as indicating that they
have already made up their mind on the planning application before the Committee sits
and thus avoid any risk of an accusation of predetermination and/or bias. In such
situations, the Member should direct the lobbyist to either speak or write to the relevant
planning officer with conduct of the application.

Members of the Planning Committee should not organise support or opposition, lobby
other Members or act as an advocate or put pressure on Officers for a particular
recommendation.

Avoiding Bias or Pre-determination

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 101



4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

5.1

5.2

It is entirely permissible for Planning Committee Members who are democratically
accountable decision makers, to be pre-disposed towards a particular outcome.
Nonetheless they must address the planning issues before them fairly and on their merits.
That means they can have a view on the application but must not make up their mind on
how to vote before formally considering the application and any representations. Planning
Committee Members must have an open mind on the merits of a proposal before it is
formally considered at the committee meeting. They must be prepared to be persuaded
by a different view in the light of any detailed arguments or representations concerning
the particular matter under consideration.

If the committee’s decision on a planning application is challenged in the High Court by
way of judicial review on the grounds that some of the committee members were biased,
or had pre-determined the application, the court will assess the matter on the basis of
what a fair-minded observer, knowing the relevant facts would think.

Councillors should approach planning applications with an open mind and are able to
weigh all the arguments right up to the point at which a decision is made. The safest course
is to avoid statements as to support or opposition for an application (that may leave the
impression that minds have been made up). If a Member has made such a statement they
must be satisfied they can still consider the application with an open mind and be prepared
to take into account any matters in favour or against the proposed development until the
decision is made.

Care should be taken with the following, where you are likely to be a decision-maker:

= Making statements in advance of the meeting that you have made up your mind how
you are going to vote;

= Taking up a campaigning role for or against an application;
= Acting as an advocate for groups opposed to or supporting the application;

Issues around bias and predetermination are difficult and getting it wrong can lead to legal
challenge and/or reference to the Local Government Ombudsman. Each case needs to be
considered on its facts and if you are in any doubt you should seek advice from the Head
of Legal Practice.

Contact with Applicants, Developers and Objectors

It is important to recognise that lobbying is a normal and perfectly proper part of the
political process and is important to local democracy; those who may be affected by a
planning decision will often seek to influence it through an approach to their elected ward
member or a member of the Planning Committee. However, unless care is taken, lobbying
can lead to the impartiality of a member being called into question and to difficulties for
the member participating in the decision.

When being lobbied, members should have regard to the advice in Section 4 about the
dangers of appearing to approach a decision with a “closed mind”. However, unless you
have a disclosable pecuniary interest or a personal and prejudicial interest, you can:

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 102



53

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

* Listen to/receive viewpoints from residents or other interested parties

=  Make comments and express views to residents, interested parties, other members or
appropriate officers

=  Give non-technical advice on planning procedures, including suggesting to those who
are lobbying, that they should speak or write to the relevant officer, in order that their
opinions can be included in the officers report to Committee

= Seek information through appropriate channels

= Alert the decision-making committee to issues and concerns that have been drawn to
your attention.

If you are approached by applicants or others seeking planning, procedural or technical
advice, they should be referred to officers.

If you are invited to, or asked to arrange, a formal meeting with applicants, developers or
groups of objectors (for instance, residents’ associations) or supporters, you should inform
the case officer dealing with the application. It is generally better to put formal meetings
on an official basis, with Planning Department support and a note taken of the meeting.
This applies to all stages of the planning process, including the pre-application stage.

If you receive any approaches which raise new issues or bring new information to light,
you should let the case officer know what these are as soon as possible. If a developer
offers any planning gain or offers to accept any conditions on development in return for
consent, be sure to let the case officer know as soon as possible.

If any approach by a developer or anyone else gives you cause to feel uneasy, please
approach the Head of Legal Practice.

In addition, if you consider any issue or fact to be a relevant consideration, and other
members may not be aware of it, be sure to raise it when the application is considered.
You should not rely on information which is not in the public arena in reaching a decision.

In personal dealings with applicants, objectors etc, you should be mindful of the need to
avoid giving a firm commitment to support/oppose the application if you are to participate
in the decision. Bear in mind that your overriding duty is to the whole community not just
to the people in your ward, that planning decisions need to be taken on planning grounds
and that you should avoid the appearance of improperly favouring any person, company,
group or locality

You should not accept gifts or hospitality from developers or from any person involved in
or affected by a planning proposal including pre-application proposals. If acceptance of
some hospitality is unavoidable, it should be kept to a minimum and should be declared
and recorded in the Council’s hospitality register. The Council’s policy is that all hospitality
beyond the insignificant (tea and biscuits or similar) should be entered in the register. If

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 103



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

significant hospitality is offered, you should seek advice from the Head of Legal Practice
before accepting.

Pre Application Discussions

Discussions between a potential applicant and the Council prior to the submission of an
application can be of considerable benefit to both parties and are encouraged by the
National Planning Policy Framework. However, it would be easy for such discussions to
become, or to be seen by objectors to become, part of a lobbying process on the part of
the potential applicant. For this reason the Council have developed pre-application
processes that enables engagement at the pre-application stage.

For major applications the Council offers a service to potential applicants to present their
schemes to the Council’s Planning Committee. This is the way in which Planning
Committee Councillors engage with these schemes and there should therefore be no
need to attend any other meeting with potential applicants or their
agents/representatives.

In other cases potential applicants may seek to meet Councillors. For minor or household
applications these can be treated as a form of lobbying and Councillors, including
Planning Committee Members, should follow the advice set out above.

Where the application is more substantial, but not subject to pre-application committee

presentations, these meetings will be subject to the following procedures:
- No meeting shall be convened without the presence of a Council planning officer
for the entire duration of the meeting.
- Both this guidance and the Members’ Code of Conduct will apply when attending
such meetings.
- Any Planning Committee Member involved in such a meeting, who sits on the
Committee that subsequently considers any resulting application, should declare
their attendance at the meeting in the same way as lobbying would be declared.
- Officers (and any Councillor, if present) should make it clear from the outset that
the discussion will not bind the Council to making a particular decision and that any
views expressed are personal and provisional.
- Any advice given should be consistent and in accordance with the Development
Plan and officers should agree, prior to any meeting, on a consistent interpretation
of Development Plan policies as applied to the particular proposal.
- Councillors should not become drawn into any negotiations, which should be done
by officers (keeping interested Councillors up to date) to ensure that the authority’s
position is co-ordinated.
- A contemporaneous note of the meeting should be prepared by the planning
officer attending wherever possible and a copy sent to all parties for their
agreement.
- The final version of the note of the meeting will form part of the planning file and
should a planning application subsequently be received, it will thereby be open to
public inspection.

Although the term ‘pre-application’ has been used, the same considerations should apply
to any discussions which occur before a decision is taken.

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 104



6.6

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.2

Planning Committee Members should not attend pre-application meetings that are not
organised through officers.

Site Visits

Individual Planning Committee members may wish to visit a site on which they have been
asked to determine an application. If you decide to visit a site, you should avoid putting
yourself in a position where you could be accused of partiality by any interested party to
the application. It is best to visit a site unaccompanied by the applicant or by objectors.
However, if a site visit is carried out in the presence of the applicant and/or their agent, or
of residents/objectors, you should bear in mind the advice given in paragraphs 4.14 and
4.15 of this Guidance. You should avoid being put under undue pressure from any
interested party to visit a site.

You should not enter onto private land or premises without first obtaining the permission
of the owner. Where possible, you should seek to familiarise yourself with the site from a
public viewpoint. If you go onto a site, you should only do so if satisfied that it is quite safe
to do so. You should not, for instance, enter a site where excavations or building works are
in progress unless guided by a responsible site manager. If you anticipate a need to ask to
enter onto land, you should attempt to make arrangements in advance and should carry
(and produce) your Council identity card.

You should ensure that any information which you gained from the site visit is reported
back to the Committee, so that all Members have the same information.

The decision on whether to carry out a formal committee site visit will rest with the
relevant lead Delivery Manager and will be based on

e The complexity or sensitivity of the development proposal.

e The characteristics of the site and its surroundings.

No formal notes of the site visit will be made. An officer, who will point out any relevant
factors and issues concerning the site and its surroundings, will accompany committee
members. A site visit is not a meeting to discuss the planning merits of the scheme or to
make decisions. The Lead DM or planning case officer will make a record of the date and
time of the site visit, attendance and the locations visited. Further information can be
found in The Formal Planning Committee Protocol for Officer-Led Site Visits, February
2023.

Post submission Documents

A Planning Committee Member should not usually be involved in discussions with a
developer or agent when a planning application has been submitted and remains to be
determined. Potentially, these discussions could be interpreted, particularly by objectors
to a proposal, as an indicator of predetermination or bias.

In limited circumstances Planning Committee Members may legitimately engage in post-
submission discussions. An example would be in the case of a large-scale development,
where it is desirable for there to be a full understanding of the Council’s planning and

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 105



8.3

8.4

9.2

9.3

9.4

10.
10.1

10.2

10.3

economic objectives. Such meetings will be organised by officers and run under the same
procedural rules as pre-application discussions.

If a Planning Committee Member is contacted by the applicant, their agent or objectors,
they should follow the rules on lobbying and consider whether or not it would be prudent
in the circumstances to make notes when contacted. A Councillor should report to the
Delivery Manager any significant contact with the applicant or other parties, explaining the
nature and purpose of the contacts and their involvement in them, so that it can be
recorded on the planning file.

Planning Committee Members should not attend post-submission meetings that are not
organised through officers.

Public Speaking at Meetings

You should not allow members of the public to communicate with you during the
Committee’s proceedings (orally or in writing) other than through the scheme for public
speaking, as this may give an appearance of bias or special access to councillors.

All planning matters will be considered in public session, unless there are specific reasons
for dealing with an item as confidential under the provisions of the Local Government Act,
1972, in which case the public will be asked to leave the room.

Applicants, agents, ward members, parish councils, members of the public and petitioners
will be allowed to speak at Planning Committee meetings, but only in accordance with the
agreed Council Public Speaking procedures.

You should avoid overfamiliarity with applicants, objectors and other members of the
public when attending meetings, as this is open to misinterpretation.

The role of Officers

Planning officers must act in accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct for Officers
and their professional codes of conduct; primarily the Royal Town Planning Institute’s Code
of Professional Conduct. The views, opinions and recommendations of planning officers
may on occasion differ from the views, opinions or decisions of the Committee or its
Members. Officers are there to give professional and impartial advice, to make sure that
members have all the information they need for decision making. They are there to advise
on the context of the planning application in terms of the development plan and all other
relevant material planning considerations. Officers will give a clear, accurate written
analysis of the issues and a recommendation with reasons for the decision they are
suggesting. Officers are there to advise (other than where the decision has been delegated
to them) and to carry out the decisions of the planning committee.

It is critical to the openness and transparency of the planning service that mutual trust
between members and their officers is demonstrated and that there is clear understanding
of and respect for the other’s role.

All members should pay particular attention to the professional advice and
recommendations from officers. Planning decisions are not an exact science so
interpretations may vary from time to time. You are not bound to follow officers’ advice

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 106



11.
111

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

12.

12.1

102.2

or recommendations, but you should only depart from advice or recommendations where
you have good reason to do so, based on clear and legitimate planning grounds. These will
need to be voted on and recorded.

Decision Making

If, as ward councillor, you ask for a proposal to be determined by Planning Committee
rather than be determined through officer delegation, make sure that your material
planning reasons are included in that request.. Any such request must state the material,
relevant planning grounds, and where possible citing development plan policies, on which
it is based.

As Committee Members you should demonstrate through your conduct at the meeting
that you are giving careful, fair and balanced consideration to the issues under discussion.
It is particularly important that applicants and members of the public have confidence in
the way in which decisions are reached. The conduct of members can be important in
ensuring that faith in the planning process is maintained.

You should keep in mind your obligation to make decisions in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise, as required by
section 38(c) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The Council’s own proposals for development must be dealt with on exactly the same basis
as applications submitted by members of the public. You should be particularly careful to
ensure that any decision on a Council application is based purely on relevant planning
considerations.

As committee members you should make a decision only after you have considered all the
relevant information needed to make a decision. If you feel you have had insufficient time
to digest new information or that you need further information, you should say so and, if
necessary, ask for a deferral or abstain.

Committee members should not vote or take part in the meeting’s discussion on a proposal
unless they have been present to hear the entire debate, including the officers’
introduction to the matter.

If, as a committee member, you are expressing a view contrary to officer recommendations
or the development plan, you should identify clearly the planning reasons leading you to
take a different view.

Training and Development

Planning decisions are often complex and differ in nature from some of the other decisions
taken by the Council. It is crucial that planning decisions are based on legitimate planning
grounds and that appropriate weight is given to possibly competing factors. The Council
offers training and development to councillors on planning law and procedure and
Members who sit on regulatory committees will need to have had at least minimum
planning familiarisation training before they attend their first meeting.

Post hoc review of new development by the Planning or Joint Development Control
Committees will be arranged on a bi-annual or more frequent basis to aid ongoing

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 107



13.
13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

14.
14.1

development of Members and officers. Bite sized updates and briefing sessions will be
provided on committee days along with thematic training sessions on specific topics each
municipal year.

Appeals

Appeals into the planning decisions of the Council are heard by a Planning Inspector
appointed by the Secretary of State. Any hearing or inquiry will be open to the public and
Members are able to attend. Members are encouraged to attend such hearings, as they
can be a good learning experience. This part of the guidance is concerned with Members
who wish to actively participate in these appeals.

If a Member wishes to attend a public inquiry or informal hearing as a Ward Member or as
a member of the public, they are free to do so. It is strongly recommended that they discuss
their participation with the Delivery Manager to ensure that they are aware of the process
and that they do not act in a manner which compromises their position as a Member of
the Council, brings the Council into disrepute or puts the decision made at risk of challenge.

A Member of a Planning Committee cannot attend an appeal on behalf of the Council’s
Planning Committee, even if they sat on the Committee that made the decision, unless this
is as part of the Council’s case as decided by the Delivery Manager. The decision of the
Committee will be documented in the minute and set out in the decision notice. The
planning officer will present the Council's case on its planning merits, in accordance with
the Committee's decision. The inspector is required to determine the appeal on its
planning merits and therefore all representations should be so directed.

Where the appealed decision was contrary to the officer’'s recommendation, officers are
generally able to present the Council's case in a satisfactory manner. Where this may not
be possible, the case will be presented by a planning consultant employed by the Council.

Planning Compliance

It is perfectly legitimate for Members to bring to the attention of the Planning Service
suspected breaches of planning control so that they may be investigated to see whether
any action is possible or necessary. They should bring these to the attention of the Planning
Compliance Manager via the online reporting tool:

Report a breach of planning control (scambs.gov.uk)

14.2

14.3

The Council’s planning compliance service operates to a priority system so that those
breaches that cause the most harm are dealt with first. This priority system is designed to
produce a fair and responsive compliance service.

For planning committee members, you are advised that when reporting a breach if no
opinion on the development / work is given (and you are simply passing on something a
resident has reported) then if a subsequent application is brought to planning committee
to regularise the development you are able to sit on the committee. However, if you are
considered to be pre-determined by what has been included in breach report then you are
advised not sit on the committee when any retrospective application is determined.

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 108


https://forms.scambs.gov.uk/REPORTABREACHOFPLANNINGCONTROL/launch

APPENDIX TO MEMBERS PLANNING GOOD PRACTICE GUIDANCE

MEMBER GUIDANCE ON REQUESTS TO REFER PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO COMMITTEE

The scheme of delegation for planning, allows any Member of the Council and any County
Member representing a Ward to request that an application be referred to the Planning
Committee for determination, provided the request is made within the timescales set out,
that it is in writing, and that it states the planning grounds on which the request is made.
Late requests should be avoided.

Members are advised to check the progress of the application with the case officer before
making a request and also to inspect the application file. This may avoid the need for a
referral.

It is important that the planning grounds for referral are stated in the written request. An
information leaflet entitled ‘How to Comment’ explains what factors can typically be
considered in assessing planning applications, depending on the circumstances of the case.
This leaflet is sent out with neighbour notification letters.

Relevant material planning grounds can include (but are not limited to):

Overlooking/loss of privacy

Loss of light or overshadowing

Parking

Highway safety

Traffic

Noise

Effect on listed building and conservation area
Layout and density of building

Design, appearance and materials
Government policy

Disabled persons' access

Proposals in the Development Plan

Previous planning decisions (including appeal decisions)
Nature conservation

In summary, Members should consider whether the development accords with planning
policy set out within the development plan; whether the development is appropriate for
the area; whether the development would cause harm to neighbouring amenity; whether
the proposal would cause traffic congestion or be a danger to highway safety. Loss of view,
loss of property value, loss of trade to businesses and moral objections are not material
considerations. The case officer can give further advice if required.

Members may feel that a particular planning application raises material planning issues, of
the kind described above, that ought to be discussed and determined at Committee, rather
than being determined under delegated powers. In deciding whether to make such a
request, it is important that Members consider any role and responsibility they may have
in the decision making process, for example sitting on the planning committee and
whether another ward member may be better placed to request a call in to committee.

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 109




6. On receipt of a written request by a Member for an application to be determined by
Committee, the case officer will acknowledge the request in writing or by telephone. The
case officer will also check with the Member that it is necessary for the application to be
determined by Committee, rather than under delegated powers. There may be particular
circumstances, depending upon the officer recommendation where a committee decision
is not necessary; this should be discussed with the planning case officer.

7. Members’ representations are summarised in the officer report.
8. It is not appropriate for a Member to request that Committee determines an application

if they have a disclosable pecuniary or personal and ‘prejudicial’ interest in it under the
Council’s Member Code of conduct.

6f Planning Good Practice Guidance for Members

Page 110



South
Cambridgeshire

CAMBRIDGE am :
C ITY C () T_J N C I L . i - S Districe Council

GREATER CAMBRIDGE SHARED PLANNING SERVICE

PLANNING COMMITTEE REVIEW

Planning Committee Date August 2024

Report to Cambridge City Council Planning Committee
South Cambridgeshire District Council

Planning Committee
Joint Development Control Planning

Committee

Report by Rebecca Smith, Delivery Manager (DM and
Compliance)

Ward/ Parishes affected All

Page 111




1.0

11

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Executive Summary

Main recommended changes from the committee review steering groups
are:
e Alignment of committee meeting formats
e Introduce a Delegation Panel for City Committee and review SCDC
Delegation Panel
¢ Amendments to scheme of delegation to align 3 committees
e Increased member engagement in major pre application and
applications via briefings
e Updated public speaking guidance and planning code of good
practice for members.

Recommendation

Officers recommend that the Cambridge City Council / South
Cambridgeshire District Council / Joint Development Control Committee:

0] Notes this report and the recommendations contained within it.

Background

Currently the Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service (GCSP)
supports three Planning Committees - Cambridge City Council, South
Cambridgeshire District Council and the Joint Development Control
planning committees.

The GCSP has been undergoing a period of transformation and this has
included a review of the planning committee processes, of both partner
Councils.

In 2020, the Planning Advisory Service (PAS) carried out reviews of all
three committees, as part of a commitment by the Shared Planning
Service to improving and unifying approaches to planning and embodying
where possible best practice to support improved community participation
and effective and transparent decision making. The purpose of the
committee process review was to review those recommendations made as
part of the PAS reviews and develop a transformation plan.

Since 2020, and noting pressure on the corporate resource the review has
been brought back in house (to the Shared Planning Service) a copy of
the timeline set by the Transformation Team at that stage is set out in
appendix 1. Following this a new senior manager has been appointed to
lead this work, this has involved revisiting the scope of the review, aligning
with the PAS best practice in managing the Planning Committee process
themes.

Page 112



Project Objectives

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.0

The following were the overarching enabling objectives set within the
scope of the project, listed in order of hierarchy:

1. Improve the quality of outcomes of development which flow from
sound planning decisions versus the process for determining
planning applications —development and decisions

2. Meet our statutory obligations

o Referring to national planning policy framework, local plan
and guidance

o Meeting the seven principles of public life (Nolan Principles)
and the Canon principles for professionals in local
government

3. Ensure transparency and accountability of the committee’s
decision-making process including delegation arrangements and
deferred decision protocol, improve communication and
collaboration for newly appointed committee members. To review
the standing orders of each of the Committees to identify
inconsistencies between committee meetings and opportunities to
Improve transparency, participation and operation of meetings and
foster trust of the service

4. Improve the experience for all “users” of the Planning Committee
process for decision making on planning and related applications

5. Compliance against statutory and service performance indicators
(KPIs)

The scope of the project included engaging with members of all planning
committees to review their experiences and seek their input into the future
role of the planning committee members, committee processes and to
consider what makes a successful committee meeting.

An officer working group and separate member working group were set up
and have been working together to inform the committee review. The two
working groups used the LGA's Probity in Planning guidance and the
Planning Advisory Service best practice in managing the Planning
Committee process themes to review the current committee practices and
make recommendations on the changes identified in this report.

The remainder of this report is split into key areas, the PAS themes within
that area that the two working groups reviewed, together with the headline
recommendations (in italics) for the amendments to be made to ensure
that the 3 planning committees are aligned and working to best practice.

Project Recommendations

Supporting Committee Members

Theme 1: Pre-determination, pre-disposition and bias

Page 113



4.1

4.2

An issue that councillors often find confusing is how to differentiate
between someone who is pre-determined, pre-disposed or biased. Whilst
a councillor who is pre-disposed to a view can still sit on a Planning
Committee, a councillor who is pre-determined cannot take

part. Therefore, it is important to understand this difference.

Recommendation R1: A Members Code of Good Practice for planning is
produced for all members. This has been drafted to include guidance and
appended to this report (Appendix 2). This will sit within the broader range
of guidance for councillors and will need to be ratified by each Council in
accordance with their own procedures.

Theme 2: Lobbying of Members

4.3

4.4

Lobbying of Members of planning committees regularly takes place prior to
a meeting as applicants and other interested parties look to persuade the
Committee of their point of view. Planning Committee Members are often
unsure what to do with the lobbying material that they receive.

Recommendation R2: A Members Code of Good Practice for planning is
produced for all members. This has been drafted to include guidance, this
will sit within the broader range of guidance for councillors and will need to
be ratified by each Council in accordance with their own procedures.

Theme 3: Dealing with petitions

4.5

4.6

4.7

It is often difficult to decide the weight given to a petition compared to an
individual letter of representation.

Recommendation R3: Petitions should be separated out in committee
report and worded as such - Petition on the grounds of xxx has been
signed by 25 residents.

This issue has been incorporated within our review of Public Speaking,
details of which are set out below.

e Petitions treated as written representations - classed as petition if
contains over 10 signatures.

e Petitioners allowed to speak up to 3 mins at committee as a
separate speaking class.

Theme 4: Receiving gifts or hospitality

4.8

Members of the Planning Committee, as well as Planning Officers, make
decisions that impact on people's lives and can either create wealth for
individuals or cause financial hardship. Members of the Planning
Committee may, on occasion, be offered hospitality, or even gifts by those
who are likely to gain or lose from a planning decision.

Page 114



4.9 Recommendation R4: Ensure that the relevant Codes of Conduct guide
councillors and officers on responses they should make if offered gifts or
hospitality.

Theme 5: Officer / Member relations

4.10 A well managed Planning Committee that makes sound, defendable
planning decisions is dependent on Members who understand the
Planning and decision making process and officers who can provide the
Members with the advice they need to make those decisions.

4.11 Recommended changes to committee meetings:

e R5 - After the publication of the agenda, if any committee members
have any questions, they should be sent to officers up to 12 noon 2
days in advance of the meeting — these will be responded to as part
of officer presentation (together with any queries raised by
Members at the committee site visit).

e RG6 - During committee meetings the presenting officer should sit as
close as possible to the planning lead officer and the legal advisor.

e R7 - At the end of the debate on each application, prior to the vote,
the Chair should summarise the key issues the committee debated;
and then the Delivery Manager confirm the officer recommendation
together with any changes / additions made by committee.

Theme 6: Ward councillor involvement in the Planning process — at pre
application and application stages

4.12 Whilst only Members of the Planning Committee are tasked with making
planning decisions, ward councillors are important advocates for their
communities in the decision making process. Ward councillors are able to
request that an application is referred to Planning Committee (currently in
SCDC this is subject to review by the Delegation Panel) and ward
councillors are able to speak at the Committee either as an objector or
supporter of a proposal. Within SCDC ward members are often referred to
as ‘local members’, however ward member / ward councillor / local
member means the same thing at both SCDC and CCC.

4.13 Recommended changes:

¢ R8 - Formalise member engagement at pre application stage
through the PPA process — including member briefings, member
attendance at design review (DRP) and requiring engagement
strategies from developers.

e R9 - Offer ward and parish councillors developer led briefings for
major pre apps - — separate to main committee meetings.

e RI10 - Offer ward and parish councillors officer led briefings on
major applications (not public meetings) — separate to main
committee meetings.

Page 115



e R11 - Develop guidance for these briefings - with criteria for when
can / can’t be suitable for briefings, set out what the purpose of pre
app briefings are, criteria on what should be covered in the
meeting, length of briefings.

Committee Meetings

Theme 7: Site visits

4.14

4.15

In order that the Planning Committee can make a decision on a planning
application the Members of the Committee need to understand the
proposal in the context of its location and geography. Officers can help
Members understand this through plans, maps and photographs, but a site
visit (SV) is included where considered appropriate to help Members of the
Committee familiarise themselves with the site. The formal planning
committee protocol for officer led site visits was agreed by the three
planning committees in December 2022/January 2023. It is important that
agreed protocols are followed on the site visit to ensure the impartiality of
the Planning Committee is maintained. The current site visit protocols
have been in operation since February 2023 and therefore should be
reviewed in early 2025, including review of available technologies for
carrying out site visits available at that stage.

Recommended changes:

e R12: Review and ensure SV dates diarised for a year in advance

e R13: Review the existing site visit protocol [and extend this to all
Planning Committee meetings]

e R14: Publish SV protocol on GCSP website

e R15: Publish a link on committee agenda to SV protocol

e R16: Democratic / Member services send out and include SV
protocol on all site visit meeting invites

e R17: Democratic / Member services invite local / ward members to
attend SV for applications in their wards

e RI18: Any queries raised as part of site visit answered during officer
presentation

Theme 8: Referral of delegated applications to Planning Committee

4.16

4.17

It is really important that the referral process and scheme of delegation is
explained clearly to councillors so that they can follow the correct
procedure and assist their constituents. There are restrictions in the
referral process with regard to timeframes and reasons for referral.

Recommended changes:

e R19: Review the need for the City Development Control Forum,
ensuring the review incorporates the recommendation above in

Page 116



theme 6 that members have a greater degree of involvement in the
PPA and pre application process.

R20: In line with the 2020 PAS recommendation to make the most
efficient use of officer and member time at Committees by focusing
on the most sensitive / complex application, introduce a delegation
panel for City and review SCDC delegation panel

R21: Review threshold and application types in schemes of
delegation for committee decisions, including NMAs, S73s, TPOs,
Deeds of Variation, prior approvals, certificates of lawfulness, and
other application types; and align scheme of delegation for the 3
Planning Committees

R22: Standardise wording for delegation to Delivery Manager for
amendments to conditions / informatives / Heads of Terms post
committee

Theme 9: Conducting the meeting

4.18 Every Planning Committee follows a similar order of business as
recommended though LGA Probity in Planning document. However, we
need to ensure that the process is well understood and transparent, so
that Members of Committees can understand and debate a planning
proposal and reach a clear, unambiguous decision.

4.19 Recommended changes:

R23: Work towards sending agendas out 7 working days in
advance - to give members more time to read; publish the
committee reports on our portal for each application - ensures wider
public visibility and reduces end of process work when it comes to
issuing decision.

R24: Review the need for hard copy agendas and agenda
presentation/ plans packs

R25: Set timing and deadlines for amendment / update sheets
R26: Set dates / times for chairs briefing and diarise for year

R27: Deferrals — those items to be removed from committee without
discussion / debate should be dealt with and deferred at the start of
the meeting

R28: Deferrals - post / during debate - members have to give
specific reasons for deferral which are minuted, these areas are
then the main areas to focus on for discussion / debate when item
comes back to committee.

R29: Develop guidance on use of and reasons for deferral —
including focus on major applications, impacts on constitution

R30: Develop guidance for the submission / circulation of
documents during the meeting, considering the option to insert a 5
minute adjournment to allow everyone to read it (including
members of the public, applicants, members, officers and anyone
else present).

Page 117


https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/34.2_Probity_in_Planning_04.pdf

Format of meetings:

* Guide time for length of officer presentations — 5 minutes unless a major
* Assume members have read the committee reports
Ofﬁcer * At the start of an item planning officer to introduce officers from other depts also in attendance to answer questions

presentation

* From members to officers
* Limit to 3 questions before deferring to officers to respond

Questions of
clarification

* Order depends on recommendation

* Objectors — share 3 mins

* Petitioners — share 3 mins

. « Applicant / agent / supporters — share 3 mins
Public * Parish Council — 3 mins

Spea kers  Local / Ward members - 3mins

 To allow additional speaking time for objectors / applicant if it’s a major / strategic scheme
Chairs
discretion

Debate

* Hand over to Chair to summarise debate, confirm officer recommendation and any changes / additions made by committee
e Electronic vote / raised hands

Theme 10: Public speaking
4.20 Public speaking at Planning Committees is a normal practice.
4.21 Recommended changes

R31: Update public speaking at planning committee guidance to ensure
encompasses:

¢ Review public speaking guidelines of the 3 planning committees to
align.

Page 118



Registration deadlines — 12 noon 2 days in advance

3 mins speaking - per category — objector, petitioner, applicant /
agent / supporter, parish council, ward member.

There is no need to have made a written representation to register
to speak at committee

Speakers can attend in person or virtually

Written representations can be accepted if person can't attend to
speak (12 noon 2 days before the meeting deadline); circulated to
members by committee services, update as part of additional late
representations in officer presentation (summarise text on screen)
and case officers redact and upload on public access.

If speakers wish to submit photos without captions/ text in advance
of the meeting this should be done so by 12 noon 2 days in
advance of the meeting for officer verification.

Install mechanisms within the council chamber to alert public
speakers, to assist with speaking time limits — eg Timing, clocks,
lights, bells

Chairs discretion to allow more than 3 mins for larger, more
complex major applications

Advice to speakers on what 3 minutes looks like — guidance e.g.
how much text on an A4 page, encourage them to time themselves,
and reiterate that they will be cut off when their 3 minutes is up.

If speakers are attending virtually, ensure phone numbers are
collected to access speakers if there is a problem.

Add front page to the agenda to set out info for residents on how
committee works (for example see appendix 3).

Theme 11: Decisions contrary to officer recommendation

4.22 The reason why a planning application comes to a Planning Committee is
to allow for elected Councillors to apply themselves and their insight to
proposals that raise more complex planning issues including matters of
policy or whether there is widespread public concern, in public Therefore,
Members of the Planning Committee have the ability to overturn an officer
recommendation. However, any contrary decision must be made on
sound planning reasons listing out clearly their reasons for doing so
referring to relevant adopted planning policies..

4.23 Recommended changes:

R32: Review the need for the Adjourned decision protocol.

R33: As part of chairs notes include a process flow chart outlining
process of making decisions contrary to officer recommendation for
committee

R34: Standard short adjournment for officers to draft reasons for
refusal for minor applications in the meeting before being voted on
by members - including legal input on whether defensible/
reasonable. Short adjournment is essential to refine the reasons for
refusal and then present back to members to agree / consider

Page 119



e R35: Potential for major applications to be deferred if contrary to
officer recommendation first committee (replacing adjourned
decision protocol) — link with guidance on deferrals versus refusals

e R36: Develop guidance for members refusing versus deferring an
item

e R37: Overturns to approval — conditions, committee need to agree
bespoke condition wording, agree the topic headings for standard
conditions

e R38: Delegate final wording to relevant Delivery Manager

Appeals
Theme 12: Councillor involvement at appeals

4.24 Members of the Planning Committee would not normally be involved in a
planning appeal and the appeal will be led by the Planning
Officers. However, when a Planning Committee makes a decision
contrary to the officer recommendation it will need to be clear to all
concerned that the Planning Officers and the Planning Committee has a
difference in views, as a result, to ensure effective representation of the
Councils case, the Shared Planning service may need to use specialist
consultants.

4.25 Recommended changes:

e R39: Ensure all members across both authorities are aware of their
responsibilities when dealing with case officers on all appeals (to be
included in the code of good practice)

e R40: Ensure all members have the relevant training/experience,
should they wish to get involved, and make representations on an
appeal.

Code of Good Practice

4.26 A Members Code of good practice for planning has been drafted and
appended to this report. This will sit within the broader range of guidance
for Clirs and will need to be ratified by each Council in accordance with
their own procedures.

4.27 In addition to this code ensure the chairs notes include sample material
considerations.

Other changes

4.28 A number of other changes have been recommended which sit outside of
the above themes:

e R41: Website changes: website page to become more user centric - part
of the steps in a planning of a planning app, what does committee do, SV
protocol, public speaking guidance.

Page 120



e RA42: Corporate Lounge / Members lounge: Screen in Members’ Lounge to
prevent delays with members returning to the chamber after leaving on
specific items.

e RA43: Committee Reports:

o use standardised format / template

o reduce the length of committee reports

o standardise a consultation grid to summarise to members who has
objected or supported, with page references to the details and total
number of objectors and supporters (see appendix 4)

o incorporate images/3d modelling into report

o number conditions where referred to in report

o put headings in for conditions

e R44: MS Teams channel for planning committee meeting correspondence
to reduce emails.

e RA45: Protocol for what happens if the livestream drops out — including
options such as disclaimer saying we will abandon the meeting until it is
back; or adjourn for period of time.

e RA46: Guidance for officers — on the use of amendments sheets, vs verbal
updates.

e RA47: Member Training — annual member training for those on planning
committee, together with a digital ‘member passport’ of training
programmed throughout the year.

e RA48: Constitution Changes — if any changes are needed, they will be
implemented for both councils and to sequence with CCC review of
constitution project to be completed by April 2025.

e R49: Standing Orders — to be updated as required.

Next steps

4.29 This is recognised as a complex project and therefore, all of the
recommendations included within this report will need to be prioritised and a
timetable devised for taking forward and implementing the recommendations.
This work will be undertaken by the officer working group, in conjunction with the
member working group. Smaller working groups will then bring forward the
necessary changes and implement once the necessary authority to do so has
been sought.

4.30 It is suggested that a review is built in after the changes have been
implemented, in a 12 or 18 month timeframe to ensure this is still meeting
Members requirements.

4.31 In addition, a further review may consider application types and thresholds
for JIDCC, recognising the costs of running planning committees versus their
importance in the democratic process and residents and community
engagement.

Page 121



5.0 Implications

Financial Implications

5.1 The cost of the Planning Committee meetings are covered within existing
budgets. The changes recommended are not anticipated to increase the
frequency of Planning Committee meetings or its caseload so as to
introduce significant additional costs. The introduction of a delegation
panel and changes to the scheme of delegation may reduce the caseload
at the committee meetings.

Staffing Implications
5.2  There are no staffing implications arising from this report.

Equality and Poverty Implications

5.3  An Equality Impact Assessment (EQIA) has not been undertaken in
respect of this report, because no material changes are proposed to the
fundamental operation of the Committee meetings.

Environmental Implications

54 None.

Procurement Implications

55 None.

Community Safety Implications

5.6 None.

Legal Implications

5.7 The recommended changes do include some implications for amendments
to the schemes of delegation, and constitution; these recommendations will need
to be embedded into the governance process for each authority.

6.0 Consultation and Communication Considerations

6.1 No formal consultation has been undertaken in the preparation of this
report. The review of the committee processes has been carried out in
conjunction with a member working party comprising of chairs, vice chairs and
spokes of all 3 planning committees operating within GCSP.

7.0 Background Papers

7.1  Background papers used in the preparation of this report:

Page 122



8.0

PAS report 2020 — Planning Committee Peer Review, Cambridge City
Council

PAS report 2021 — Planning Committee Peer Review, South
Cambridgeshire District Council

South Cambridgeshire District Council Ethical Handbook (May 2020)
Ethical Handbook.pdf (moderngov.co.uk) and Constitution. Agenda for
Constitution on Thursday, 9 June 2022 (moderngov.co.uk)

Cambridge City Council Planning Code of Good Practice 2015

PAS Planning Committee Protocols: Planning Committee Protocols | Local
Government Association

Planning Committee Site Visit Protocol:
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/GCSP_All_Staff/SS/
Management/Process_Improvement/Committee%20Site%20Visits/FEB%2
02023%20FINAL/SVP%20FEB%202023.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=neKLFb

Report Author

Rebecca Smith
Delivery Manager (DM and Compliance)
Rebecca.smith@greatercambridgeplanning.org

Page 123


https://www.local.gov.uk/pas/development-mgmt/planning-committee/planning-committee-support/planning-committee-protocols
https://www.local.gov.uk/pas/development-mgmt/planning-committee/planning-committee-support/planning-committee-protocols
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/GCSP_All_Staff/SS/Management/Process_Improvement/Committee%20Site%20Visits/FEB%202023%20FINAL/SVP%20FEB%202023.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=neKLFb
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/GCSP_All_Staff/SS/Management/Process_Improvement/Committee%20Site%20Visits/FEB%202023%20FINAL/SVP%20FEB%202023.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=neKLFb
https://councilanywhereorg.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/GCSP_All_Staff/SS/Management/Process_Improvement/Committee%20Site%20Visits/FEB%202023%20FINAL/SVP%20FEB%202023.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=neKLFb

Appendix 1: Timeline:

Planning Committee Project

Proposed Timeline -
GREATER CAMBRIDGH

SHARED PLANNING

Monitor feedback
from first
meetings with
new processes

Road testing of new
processes with
selected Members (4-8
from each Council, Tumi/Katie
10 be involved), final
adjustments based on
this testing

Interim ‘what we've
done so far’ report
ready for w/c 111 Sept

GSCP Member Board
presentation 18! Sept

Reviewing processes
against PAS themes

Old processes retired
at this point

Recommendations
report to Members,
Planning Committees
and City + SCDC Exec

Complete data
gathering & analysis

Set up member
steering group

Training for all
committee members

Stakeholder agreement
sought

Complete interviews Ensure everything is in

with stakeholders to Reviewing processes Make any adjustments place for upcoming New meeting
understand problems against PAS themes based on stakeholder change to new processes in place and
and issues (see below) comments & feedback processes operating
Councillor invelvement in pre application advice Personal, prejudicial and pecuniary interests Pre-determination, pre-disposition and bias Lobbying of Members
Dealing with petitions Receiving gifts or hospitality Officer / Member relations Ward councillor involvement in Planning process
Site visits Conducting the meeting Public speaking Decisions contrary to officer recommendation
Training Councillor involvement at appeals Reviewing the code of practice Referral of delegated applications to Planning Committee

Page 124



Appendix 2 : DRAFT Planning Code of Good Practice for Members

Page 125



Appendix 3: Consultation Matrix

Page 126



Appendix 4: DRAFT agenda front page text

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

L~
Y COUNGIL
DRAFT PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2025/26
To:
Civic Affairs Committee (5" February 2025)
Report by:
Lynsey Fulcher, Head of People
Tel: 07592 384229 Email: lynsey.fulcher@cambridge.gov.uk
Wards affected:
All
1. Recommendations
1.1 The Civic Affairs Committee is asked to consider the changes and recommendations
proposed to pay approaches as outlined in this report, specifically;
a. The recommendation that the Cambridge Weighting rate is increased from
£12.50 per hour to £13.00 per hour.
b. The removal of the Cambridge Weighting and Real Living Wage 4-week
qualifying period for agency staff.
c. To review and recommend to Full Council the Pay Policy Statement at
Appendix 1.
2. Purpose and reason for the report
2.1 In 2015, the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government issued the Local

Government Transparency Code 2015. The code sets out the key principles in making
local authorities more transparent and accountable to local people. The Council has
been, and continues to be, proactive in its compliance with this and the following report

provides detail on the Council’s pay practices to satisfy the requirements of the code.

Page 129




2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

Under the Localism Act 2011, Local Authorities are required to prepare a Pay Policy
Statement for each financial year. These statements must articulate an authority’s own
policies towards a range of issues relating to the pay of its workforce, particularly its

senior staff (or ‘chief officers’) and its lowest paid employees.

Attached at Appendix 1, this policy statement must be approved by a resolution of the

authority, i.e., full Council, and is required to be published by 31 March.
Background and key issues

The pay policy statement outlines the Councils approach to pay and reward for all staff,
separating out Chief Officers where necessary to satisfy the requirements of the Localism
Act. For Cambridge City Council, the definition of Chief Officer includes the grades of

Chief Executive, Director and Assistant Director.

In line with the annual review of the pay policy statement, the HR team have reviewed
the additional elements of pay that are outlined in the pay policy and have developed
some pay and policy recommendations for Civic Affairs to consider. The changes
proposed are outlined below, and the pay policy statement has been updated to reflect

these recommendations.
Cambridge Weighting

The Council pays a Cambridge Weighting to employees on City Council terms and
conditions of employment and qualifying agency workers earning less than the
approved rate per hour. The weighting is paid in addition to salary and the Real Living

Wage supplement.

The Real Living Wage Foundation rate of pay increased in November 2024 to £12.60
per hour, higher than the Councils existing Cambridge Weighting rate of £12.50 per
hour. It is proposed that the Cambridge Weighting allowance is increased to £13.00 per
hour from 15t April 2025.

Page 130



3.2.3

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

4.1

5.1

There are currently 60 employees that could see an increase to pay if the Cambridge
Weighting rate was increased to £13.00 per hour. Of these, 51 employees are on zero-
hour contracts and typically work at weekends or evenings where additional
enhancements already apply. The total cost of increasing the Cambridge Weighing rate

in line with the recommendation is therefore not expected to exceed £6,000 per annum.

Agency Pay

The Council’s current approach to paying the Real Living Wage and Cambridge
Weighting rates is that agency workers only receive the increased hourly rates once
they have been engaged with the City Council, via an agency, for four consecutive

weeks.

The process requires a monthly review of agency salary data to determine who meets
the criteria for the increased rate, and manual adjustments take place to increase the
pay for these individuals. The proposal to remove the qualifying period would reduce

the administrative burden of this process.

Very few agency staff are engaged at this salary level. The proposal to remove this
qualifying period would result in an increase of approximately £3,000 per annum to

agency spend.

Corporate plan

The Pay Policy links in to all the Corporate Plan priorities as it affects those staff working

across the organisation

Corporate plan 2022-27: our priorities for Cambridge - Cambridge City Council

Consultation, engagement and communication

The Chief Executive and the Council’s Leadership Team have been consulted on this

report and changes to the attached draft Pay Policy Statement.

Page 131


https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/corporate-plan-2022-27-our-priorities-for-cambridge

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

The Leader of the Council, Executive Councillor for Finance and Resources and trade
unions, Unison and GMB have been consulted on the proposed changes to the Pay
Policy Statement and other recommendations outlined within this report.

This pay policy statement, once approved by Full Council, will be published on the

Council’s website.
Implications

Relevant risks

The financial cost is the only risk identified as a result of this proposal. Any reputational

and staffing impact is deemed positive.

Financial Implications

Any immediate costs associated with the recommendations above will be met from

Group budgets.

Legal Implications

There are no legal implications arising from the report.

Equalities and socio-economic Implications

An equality impact assessment has not been undertaken for this report. Equality
information by grade is analysed in depth and reported annually to the Equalities Panel
and is available on the Council’s website.

Net Zero Carbon, Climate Change and Environmental implications

The proposals in this report have no climate change impact.

Page 132



6.6

6.7

7.1

8.1

Procurement Implications

The Living Wage Policy as it relates to contractors is included in the Pay Policy

Statement.

Community Safety Implications

This report relates to the pay, terms and conditions of staff and does not impact directly

on community safety matters.

Background documents
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to
Information) Act 1985

Pay Policy Statement 2024/25

City Council Pay scales

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Draft Pay Policy Statement 2025/26

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report please contact
Lynsey Fulcher, Head of People, Tel: 07592 384229, email: Lynsey.fulcher@cambridge.gov.uk

Page 133


mailto:Lynsey.fulcher@cambridge.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2025/26 r\
Effective from 15t April 2025 \ =

—

1. Introduction CITY COUNCIL

Cambridge City Council is committed to operating consistent, transparent and equitable pay
arrangements.

This statement details the pay policy and approaches applied to all staff within Cambridge
City Pay bands in addition to all Statutory and Non-Statutory Chief Officers, as defined
under the Council’s constitution, to fulfil the Council’s statutory requirements under Chapter
8 of the Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”)

This pay policy statement was updated and agreed by Full Council in March 2025.
2. Senior Salaries from 15t April 2024

The salary scales for the Chief Executive, Directors and Assistant Directors following the
nationally agreed pay award with effect from 1 April 2024 are shown below.

Progression through the pay grade (a three or four-point scale) is subject to a range of criteria
that are assessed via an annual performance review.

Pay Grade Point 1 (£) Point 2 (£) Point 3 (£) Point 4 (£)
Chief Executive 135,028 140,438 145,888 151,299
Director 104,335 108,215 112,102 115,990
Assistant Director 2 91,447 94,191 97,017 n/a
Assistant Director 1 83,595 86,197 88,783 n/a

The Council has an agreement that senior officer pay scales will be reviewed every three
years in line with the current market median level pay, this includes Chief Executive,
Director and Assistant Director pay grades. The last review was undertaken in 2023
whereby a full redesign of the grades took place. The effectiveness of these scales will
continue to be reviewed annually.

3. Annual Pay Awards
For the Chief Executive pay grade, pay awards are nationally determined in accordance with
the Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Chief Executives. For Directors and Assistant
Director grades, the Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Chief Officers is applied, and the
National Joint Council (NJC) determines the pay awards for City Pay Grades 1 — 11.

Pay points within the grades are subject to nationally negotiated pay awards with effect from
1 April 2024 and will increase in line with any nationally agreed award.

Page 135



4. Chief Officer Terms and Conditions of Employment

The terms and conditions of employment for the Chief Executive, Directors and Assistant
Directors within the scope of this pay policy statement are determined in accordance with
collective agreements, negotiated from time to time, by the JNC for Chief Executives and
the JNC for Chief Officers, as set out in the Scheme of Conditions of Service. These are
supplemented by local collective agreements reached with trade unions recognised by the
Council and by the rules of the Council.

5. Chief Officer Remuneration on Appointment

Rules governing the recruitment of the Chief Executive, Directors and Assistant Directors are
set out in the council’s constitution in section; Part 4i, Officer Employment Procedure Rules.

Recruitment to the posts of Chief Executive and Director is undertaken by a committee of
Councillors appointed by Council. In the case of the Chief Executive, the appointment is made
by Full Council, following a recommendation from the Employment (Senior Officer) Committee.

Appointment to fixed term Director roles that do not form part of the Leadership Team is
the responsibility of the Head of Paid Service or their nominee.

Recruitment to posts of Assistant Director will be undertaken by the Chief Executive or a
Director. The salary on recruitment will be within the salary range for these posts at that
time.

6. Market Supplements

There are occasions when the salary determined by the grading for a post result in an
inability to successfully recruit to or retain staff in particular posts or specific occupational
areas due to fluctuations in the labour market supply. This is more challenging in the
Cambridge area due to the high demand for labour, the high number of vacancies and high
cost of housing.

These recruitment and retention problems can affect ability to deliver services. In such
cases it may be appropriate to pay a market supplement in addition to the salary where
there is evidence to justify that market factors are the “material reason” for the post
attracting a higher rate of pay than other posts graded similarly. Any additional market
supplement will be made in accordance with the Market Pay Policy.

7. Retention Payments
There may be occasions when due to recruitment and retention difficulties within a specific
service area or role, it may be more appropriate to use a recruitment and retention package

approach than a market supplement. Such an approach offers a fixed lump sum payment for
new appointments or to the staff in identified roles at a given date.

Page 136



The payment is tied to a defined retention period and must be repaid in full if the person
leaves the employment of the Council within the designated period. The aim of this
approach is to recruit new staff and retain existing staff where there is evidence of both
types of difficulty and a market supplement approach is assessed as less effective.

8. Bonuses
There are no bonus arrangements payable to our Chief Officers or any Council staff.
9. Performance Related Pay

Performance and progression through the pay band is assessed annually for all staff in line
with the Council’s performance review schemes.

The performance review for Directors is undertaken by the Chief Executive and for the Chief
Executive by the Leader and an independent advisor. Performance reviews for all other
Officers are undertaken by their line manager.

10. Senior Salary Pay Data

In accordance with the Government’s Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities
on Data Transparency, the Council publishes information on all employees earning £50,000
or above.

Following approval at Full Council of the Draft Pay Policy Statement this updated pay policy
statement is published on the Councils website.

11. Expenses

The expenses which may be payable to all Officers, including the Chief Executive, Director
and Assistant Directors include:
= car/bicycle/motorcycle allowances at HMRC rates
re-imbursement of travel and subsistence
one professional subscription per annum
payments under the eye-sight tests scheme
relocation assistance in accordance with the Relocation Scheme

12. Severance Payments

Severance payments are made in accordance with the council’s employment policies and are
the same for all staff.

Employees with more than two years’ service will be entitled to redundancy pay in line with
local government guidelines and statutory provisions.

Redundant employees may receive the following elements in their final pay:
= Normal pay up to the agreed leaving date
= Where applicable, payment in lieu of outstanding notice
= Severance payment (where entitled).

Page 137



Under the council’s redundancy scheme a weeks pay will be calculated on the basis of
actual weekly pay. Cambridge City Council will not apply the statutory weeks pay definition.

Once an employee is in receipt of early payment of pension benefits, if their total pay and
pension benefits together (if reemployed by another employer covered by the Local
Government Modification order) exceeds their salary as at the leaving date, the difference may
be claimed back from pension payments.

An employee will lose their entitlement to redundancy pay if they take up a post with another
body covered by the Redundancy Payments (Local Government) (Modification)
(Amendment) Orders within 4 weeks of the date of the redundancy and the offer of the new
job has been made before the end of the original contract.

Any proposals with a salary or severance package with a total value over £100k will be
reported by the Employment (Senior Officer) Committee to Full Council for decision.

The Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer can only be dismissed by
the Full Council. All other Directors and Assistant Directors can only be dismissed in
accordance with the Councils constitution, Part 4i, Officer Employment Procedure Rules.

13. Pension and Pension Enhancements

All employees are entitled to and receive pension contributions under the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS). This is a contributory scheme and employees currently contribute
between 5.50% and 12.50% of their pensionable pay to the scheme. Chief Officers
contributions currently range from 9.90% to 12.50%

The Council’s discretions on enhancement of pension are set out in the Pensions Discretion
Statement 2022. This policy was approved by the Civic Affairs Committee on 21 September
2022. The policy is reviewed every 3 years and/or in line with changes to the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) as advised by the Local Government Pensions
Committee (LGPC) and the Administering Authority (Cambridgeshire County Council).

The next review of the Pensions Discretion Statement is scheduled for 2025.

14. Lowest Paid Staff: Real Living Wage & Cambridge Weighting

The lowest paid staff within the Council’s pay structure are on Band 1. The lowest pay point
is £23,656 (£12.26 per hour) (April 2024). Cambridge City Council is an accredited Real
Living Wage employer and also pays a Cambridge Weighting supplement. This means that
the current minimum pay level for staff is £12.60 per hour. This will increase to a minimum of
£13.00 per hour from 1 April 2025.

The terms and conditions of employment for Band 1 staff are in accordance with collective
agreements, negotiated from time to time, by the National Joint Council for Local Government
Services, as set out in the Scheme of Conditions of Service (commonly

Page 138



known as the Green Book). These are supplemented by local collective agreements
reached with trade unions recognised by the Council and by the rules of the Council.

14.1 Real Living Wage

The Council is accredited with the Living Wage Foundation which means it has adopted a Real
Living Wage policy for staff, agency workers and contractors engaged through the Council’s
Procurement processes.

The implementation date for Real Living Wage increase is usually November for staff engaged
on city council terms and conditions of employment, following the annual announcement. With
effect from November 2024 the Real Living Wage increased to £12.60 per hour.

The Council will pay the Real Living Wage rate for staff engaged on city council pay rates by
way of a supplement to pay rates.

The Council will require contractors engaged through the Council’s procurement processes

to pay at least the Real Living Wage to all their staff who work on the Council’s premises (or

land maintained by the Council) for two or more hours on any day of the week for eight or

more consecutive weeks. The only contracts that will be excluded from the requirement to

pay the Real Living Wage are:

= contracts where it would be unlawful to require the payment of the Real Living Wage

= contracts where, following evaluation, it is considered inappropriate to impose the
requirement.

14.2 Cambridge Weighting

The Council pays a Cambridge Weighting to employees on city council terms and conditions
of employment and related agency workers earning less than the approved rate per hour. The
weighting is paid in addition to salary and the Real Living Wage supplement. With effect from
1 April 2025 the Cambridge Weighting rate is £13.00 per hour.

For agency workers the weighting applies in addition to current hourly rates and the Real

Living Wage arrangements. The weighting is variable, depending upon the current hourly
rate and the Real Living Wage supplement payable at that time.

15. Apprentices

Apprentices are appointed on permanent contracts of employment within Cambridge City
Council unless there is a justifiable reason why there is a requirement for a fixed term post.

Apprentices are paid on a salary proportionate to the role that they have been employed to

undertake, or the recognised Real Living Wage/Cambridge Weighting rate of pay, whichever
is the highest.

Page 139



The Council also offer apprenticeships to current employees who are paid in accordance
with their existing pay arrangements during the apprenticeship.

16. Pay Ratios

The table below shows a number of pay ratios. The Council does not have a policy on
maintaining or reaching a specific pay ratio between the lowest and highest paid staff. The
highest paid officer of the council is the Chief Executive. The highest pay point on this scale
is currently £151,299 (April 2024).

Annual Ratio to Chief Explanation
Salary Executive highest
pay point
Real Living Wage Rate of £24.309 1:6.0 Chief Executive’s salary and 2024/5 Real
£12.60 (Nov 2024) Living Wage rate.
Lowest council pay £23,656 15.6 Chief Executive’s salary and lowest
scale point (£12.26) council pay scale point
2024/25 Cambridge £24.110 1:5.9 Chief Executive’s salary and £12.50
Weighting rate of £12.50 ’ Cambridge Weighting
Median Average salary £37,938 125 Chief Executive’s salary and current
median average salary

17. Election Fees

The Returning Officer is the person who has the overall responsibility for the conduct of
elections. The Returning Officer is an officer of the Council who is appointed under the
Representation of the People Act 1983. Although appointed by the Council the role of the
Returning Officer is one of a personal nature and distinct and separate from their duties as
an employee of the Council. Elections fees are paid for these additional duties and they are
paid separately to salary.

The role of Chief Executive is the council’s Returning Officer.

The fees for Parliamentary, Police & Crime Commissioner, Euro Elections and national
referenda are set by the Government. The fees for County Council elections are set by the
County Council. The fees for the Combined Authority Mayoral election are set by the
Combined Authority. The fees for Parliamentary and European Elections are pensionable.

Fees for district elections are set locally (mindful of neighbour district council fees) and
were last reviewed in April 2010 as £373 per contested ward and £55 per uncontested
ward. Fees for district elections are pensionable.

Other officers, including senior officers within the scope of this policy, may receive additional
payment for specific election duties.

Page 140



18. Tax Avoidance and IR35

The Council takes tax avoidance seriously and will seek to appoint individuals to vacant
positions using the recruitment procedures on the basis of contracts of employment and
apply direct tax and National Insurance deductions from pay through the operation of
PAYE.

Where consultants are recruited, the Council will seek to avoid contractual arrangements
which could be perceived as being primarily designed to reduce significantly the rate of
tax paid by that person, such as paying the individual through a company effectively,
controlled by him or her.

These principles will be embedded in contract clauses and guidance for managers when
employing consultants.

In addition, workers employed directly by the Council will be assessed to establish whether
they fall within scope of the IR35 legislation using the HMRC employment status tool.
Workers that fall within scope will have Income Tax and National Insurance contributions
deducted and paid over to HMRC.

19. Re-engagement of ex City Council staff

Re-engagement of any ex City Council staff will be carried out by following the Council’s
usual recruitment policy and procedures, or for interim arrangements via the Council’s
procurement policies and the provisions for contract for services.

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Constitutional Changes to Cambridge City Council in regards of Planning
	Item 5. Appendix A Changes to Cambridge City Council Constitution
	Item 5. Appendix B Scheme of Delegation Final 2024
	Item 5. Appendix B - Annex 3 - Layout_CambridgeEast
	Item 5. Appendix B - Annex 3 - Layout_CambridgeWestNorthWest
	Item 5. Appendix B - Annex 3 - Layout_CBC
	Item 5. Appendix B - Annex 3 - Layout_FulbournRoad
	Item 5. Appendix B - Annex 3 - Layout_NECAAP_Landscape
	Item 5. Appendix C - Public Speaking Rights at Planning Committee
	Item 5. Appendix D Members Planning Good Practice Guide 2024 - Copy
	Item 5. Appendix E - Committee review outcome report for Aug 2024

	6 Draft Pay Policy Statement 2025/26
	Item 6. Appendix 1 - PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2025 (1)


